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BREWDOG TOMORROW

LET'S ENSURE WE
HAVE A PLANET
T0 BREW BEER ON.

BREWDOG HAS COME
ALONG WAY.

We've grown, and we've grownup.

We have always believed that business
should be aforce for good and that
brave thinking and bold actions are the
only way o make realimpact.

Today, we are in the middle of aclimate
crisis, It is a crisis of our owndesign,
driven by big business. We recognise
aur contribution and the limitationg of
ourindustry.

CHANGE ISN'T

HAPPENING FAST ENOUGH.

NOW IS THETIME TO
BERADICALIN
EVERYTHING WE DO.

We beligve the best solutions will come
through transparency, collaborationand
community, I's the only way (o accelerate
the change we need.

ACTIONS NOT PROMISES.

We don't have all the answers, butin 2020
weare changing Lhe way we dothings.

We will start by launching six major iniifatives that

put our money where our heart is.

We're committed tomaking great beer,

and ensuring we have aplanet lodrink it on.

THE NEW BREWDOG STARTS HERE.

#1. CANS FOR EQUITY

During our most recent crowdfunding
round, we enabled people totradein
50 of their empty BrewDog cansto
become an Equity Punk.

#4.DIY DOG

Responslble brewing at home means
noliquid transport miles,
Brew your avvngoddamn beer.

#2. INDIE TRASH CANS

Giving waste cans a second lite with our
upcycling revolution (so don't be surprised i
your beer comes iha cofa can.)

#5. BREWDOG FREEHOUSE

Making all our beer knowledge available
andopen-source, from recipes and new
brew standards, to Dog Impact
accountability reports,

#3.ONCE BEER VODKA

Imperfect beer makes great vodka,
Instead of throwingiit out, we distilit.
Allfor less waste, and higher standards.

#6. TOMORROW FUND

Investing up to €1m a year in research and
initiatives that help our industry
have a positive impact on theworld.

CHANGE IS BREWING.

BREWDOGCOM/ TOMORROW
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2019 IN NUMBERS

IN 2019 WE GREW OUR
GROUP SALES BY L TN N TN
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IN 2018 WE HOSTED THE MAIDEN VOYAGE OF

BREWDOG AIRLINES

INCREASED OUR
CANNING CAPACITY BY
GLOBALLY, WE THERE ARE
EMPLOY ALMOST NOW OVER I I 6 0/
PEOPLE | ponks
PUNKS
DT £17,000,000
£9,000,000
£7,000,000
£6,000,000
£6,000,000 gs.soo,ooo
_ £2,912,000
£572,000 '
2012 2013 ' 2014 | 2015 2016 2017 2018 o 2019
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TOTAL COVERAGE
TOP10BRANDS BY
VALUE SALES (M)%
CHG.VS. YA, PRICE
PERUTREMATTYTO
WE.04.01.20

" [
vawesaesem | 45.8 10.3 8.3 8. 6.0 5.6 53 4.7 4.3 43
VALUE % CHEG YA 97 56.2 93 -ns A 2.6 18.7 340.8 2324 A
PAICE PERVKE £4.27 E4.14 £4.49 £4.56 E2.54 £6.37 £3.55 £3.10 £6.87 £4.46
GLOBALBESTSELLINGBEER 2019 SALES SPLIT BY PACKAGE
TOP TEN BEST SELLING BREWDOG BEERS AS % _:
OF TOTAL SALES
OTHER
660mI BOTILE
wre & - ~L2*
KEY KEG
"
PU:I;(O/[PA ELVI?OiUICE DEAD PEQYBLUB 330miCAN

38%,

4, LOSTLAGER 5%

5. NANNY STATE 4%

6.INDIE a%

7.CLOCKWORK TANGERINE 3%

8. HAZY JANE 2% 330miBOTTLE
9. PUNKAF 1% 19%

10. VAGABOND PALEALE 1%
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CAPTAIN'S UPDATE

2019 was our biggest year to date. It also marked a turning
point for us in our evolution as a business, as we evolved
mission, our branding and our position in the world. Cur
roots remain untouched. We are still here to make other
people as passionate about great craft beer as we are.
But the ways in which we bring that tolife, the investment
we make in our beer and our people, and the ambitious
goals we set ourselves have never been so bold.

As we enter our 13th year, we are renewing our focus

on sustainability and transparency, and we're owning

our position as one of the world's largest independent,
community-owned businesses by continuing to focus on

our amazing pecple and our amazing community members.

in 2018 we saw a very solid year of growthin the UK,
inour bars and in key international markets. Our US
business has also gone from strength to strength as we
increased sales stateside by 57%. In Australia, we built a
brand new brewery, and we purchased a state of the art
brewery in Berlin, Germany as well as launching into key
emerging craft beer markets such as India and Russia.

Our 2012 business plan has been built onreinvesiment,
and we have conlinuedtoinvestin our people, our
beer, our infrastructure and our brewery, building the
foundations for future growth and paving the way for us
to become the first truly global craft beer business. Our
slightly reduced 2019 EBITDA reflects our high growth
rate and our global investments and infrastructure
build-oul as we now have 4 major breweries globally.

Alcohol free has been an emerging trend for the past
couple of years and is becoming an ever increasing
part of our business, and we now are the world's leading
producer of non-alcohglic craft beers. In 2019, Punk

AF was named the 'best hooze-free beerin Britain.

Our commitment to offering incredible alcohaol-free
craft beer is further reinforced by new additions to

the AF range, which will be unleashed in 2020.

In the past 12 months, we have thrown open the doors to
some incredible new craft beer venues, including Dublin,
(marking our 100th site, our outpost brewing location on
the banks of the river Liffey), DogTap Brisbane, and the
unprecedented launch of BrewDog Berlin-takingona
major, beautiful space in the south of the German capital,
and creating anew European hub for incredible craft beer
in the historic home of brewing. These are just a handful
of highlights from a standout year for our retail division.

2020 has been challenging all round so far with
Covid-19 having a big impact on businesses all over
the planet. Despite the difficulties we have managed
to weather the storm better than expected with very
strong grocery sates and very strong online sales
compensating for the temporary closures of our bars
and the closure of our on-premise wholesale channel.
As | write this, all our bars are back openagain and
off-trade and digital sales continue to be very strong
and we are optimistic about the remainder of 2020.

Throughout the pandemic we also wanted to show
that business could be a force for good. To that

end we made and donated over 500,000 units of
hand sanitiser to the NHS, Health Care Charities
and key workers. We also made a special Help NHS
Heroes 12 pack and created a digital online bar.

After a strong 2019 and coming through the challenges
of early 2020 strongly we are excited to see where we
can take this thing over the rest of 2020 and beyond.

Hold Fast,

James
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019 WAS A GREAT
YEARFOR US

HERE ARE SOME OF THE HIGHLIGHTS

“ SUNDAYTIMES  °
FASTTRACK100

We were named in this esteemed list of the UK's
fastest-growing businesses for the 8th consecutive
year.No other business has appeared so often.

2, 6.

THE BRAND
FINANCE REPORT

We were voted the 19th most vaivable beer brand enthe
planet on thislist. This is such a huge achievement, as we
were also the only craft brand, the only UK brand and the only
independent brand on that list. Oh, and the youngest too!

* DISRUPTORBRAND '
OF THE DECADE

We were named "Most disruptive brand of the decade” by
the influential publication, PR Week. A huge achievement
and recognition of all of the work that has goneinto
building our incredible brand over the years.

INTERWATIONAL
PERFORMANCE

France and Sweden are both highlights from the past
12 months, with these key export markets seeing
increases of 30% compared to the previous year.

4,

BREWDOG DISTILLING
GREW 142%

Alter realigning our strategy in this part of our business,
we released a series of new products including Rogue
Wave Vodka, Zealot's Heart, and LoneWolf Cloudy
Lemon Gin, and saw sales grow by 142%in 2019.

THE
DOGHOUSE

Our crowdiunded crait beer hotellocatedinside
our Columbus brewery was named as one of
TIME's 100 best places on the planet.

EQUITY
FOR PUNKS

We now have more than 130,000 craft beer crusadersin
our ranks, propelling our business forward and sharing
their passion for craft beer beyond their own community.

BREWDOG



THEBEST OF 2019

LAUNCHED OUR100™ ANNOUNCGED THI
CRAFTBEERBARWORLDWIDE = CREWPRINT FOR

LAUNCHED DOGT/

w ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS 8



THE SUNDAY TIMES

FAST

TRACK
t BREWDOG *
OUR TEAMS APPEARED IN THE
SUNDAY TIMES
FAST TRACK 100
FORTHE 8TH
Virgin arlanric@ co"?ﬁﬁg““
OUTPERFORMED US MARKET

\P BRISBANE GROWTH RATE BY 57%
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I 2020; our busingss will update its branding to keep ahead

of the ever changing aind evolving market we exist within: -

Recogpition for the BrewDog name worldwide continues to:

climbat 3 fast and growing pace, and updating out branding in

line with broaderiing appeal and awareness will enable us to:
maintain a competitive advantage.

We diso wiéré ranked as the 2nd fastest growing UK brand by
Kaiitar in 2019, adding an amazing 40% to our brand value in
ihe last12 months: Brand finance alsonamed us as 15th most-
valuable Beénbrand on.the planet, appearing as the only craft
braiid, only UK brand, and only independlent brand. We wére also
' the youngestin'the list,

JTPRINT

Qur business exporis to 60 couitries globally: We have
‘breweriesin 4 countries, and over 100 bars worldwide. Our
ability to reach'more people than any othiér.craft brewer, with

incredible beer, that is brewed fresh and locally, is unparalieled.,

- "Qurexpangion plang wilt bririg additional regiona within our

reach, and furtherbuild on our gxisting brewery sites to optimise
their efficiency; capacily aind distribution.

Now operating 100 craft beer bars worldwide, including 7 with
brewing facilities attached, we continueito buck the trend by

awesome experiences for 6Ur CosIGmers,and investingin
training and facilities to serve ths best possible beerin the most
memorable way.:

James Watt & Marlin Dickie‘.,WhOCd-bUridé‘d the businessin 2007,
remain at the helm of BrewDog, and drivé our. ambitious strategy.
evéry day. Supported by our Mission Cantrdlteamn of experienced
directors around the worid, thiei vision i§ broughit tolife by a close-
knit team of high-performing individiials who are BrewDogto the
bone.

IN2019, we proved that releasing an alcohal-free range maide
good business sense, as we picked up more than 7,500°
distritiution points for a refatively new category-We have

innovated in this ﬁéldz investingin techniques and trials toachieve
‘the bestquality béers imaginable; without the algohol. We also
brewed oveer 109 different beers, adding range to our portfalio,
and offering more choice to.our customersand fans. *UK off-
trade-

DURQUALITY FOCUS

iRt o)

We have always been steadfastly focused on the quality of aur beer, 2rid
this attitude influences everythinig we do as a company: Fram opening
our distillery.to new brewing facilities around the globee, ouir obsessive

attention to detail when it comes to qualily, OUF 6€iis on infGvation; and

our experience inmodern; technglogically-advanced brewing giveus a

greatadvantage globally.

ANNUAL REPORT &ACCOUNTS
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OURPEOPLE

8rewDogis built ona commitment to its warkforce. Our people are the beating heart of our business,
they are the reason we exist and the thing we must work hardest to protect and develop.

In 2010, we introduced ihe BrewDog Crowprint, outlining the range of initiatives we offer our tcama.
Alongside the Real Living Wage, private medical, Pawternity leave, enhanced parental leave,
Cicerone training & bonuses for all staff, our profit sharing scheme the Unicorn Fund, and ‘Hop
Stock'share options, we have introduced a series of new benefits for our teams including:

SALARY CAP

As we seek to promoteinternally, no new hirescan
earnmare than 7 times our entry level positions.

BREWDOG FOUNDATION

We will give away up to £1m per year {o charities chosen by
ourteams.,

.‘:":""‘A"\"f*\ 'j}f ;"‘N"
: ﬂ\(ﬁ 'M.w'

dkii

We will fund 1 day of charity work for each team member por
year, and match charitable giving up to £200.

WAGESTREAM

Empowering our teams to unlock their wages when they need
them, we introduced this salary benefit to all staff in 2019.

BREWDOG ACADEMY

A serios of lectures and Q8A sessions with our busincas lcaders

and guest speakers.

GENDER DIVERSITY

Gender diversity isa by priority for us as a business, and we
are conscious we need to focus on balance here. Although our
balanceis currently not where we would (ike, we are committed

to inspiring and supporting the next generation of
female leaders.

86%
2%
: B4%
b k%
- - 8% a t o=
W% ¥ L
MIMALE  BALC TEMALE  RALC TIMALL  BALC
UIRECIURLEVEL SENIBR TEAM LEVEL ACROSS THE BUARD

n
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For year ended 31 December 2019

Year Ended Year Ended
314 December 2019 31 December 2018
, £'000 £'000
Gross Revenue 214,806 171619
Duty {40,290} (31,966)
Netrevenue " {74808 139,653
Costof sales ~ (99,87) (81912)
Gross Profit 76439 57,741
Operating expenses {BE BT (58,021)
Gain on acquisition of Berlin Brewery and Taproom 14,2453 -
Gain/{Loss) on disposal of property. plant and equipment 766 (303)
Other operating income 1966 974
Operating profit 3733 391
Adjusted EBITDA" 17,075 6,988
* Adjusted for non-cash foreign exchange transactions and share based payments.
REVENUE
2019 was another yeéar of strong growth, with gross revenue up 25% on 2018. This was driven by

organic growth and acquisitions.

OPERATING EXPENSES

As planned 2019 was another year of growth and investment, particularly in our teams, marketing,
our increasing bar network both in the UK and overseas and in acquisilions. This led toanincrease

inoverheads.

ADJUSTED EBITDA AND OPERATING PROFIT

The gain on tho acquisition of the Berlin brewery and taproom contributed to tho improvemaont in
adjusted EBITDA and operating profit. The adjusted EBITDA and opcrating profit excluding the
Berlin brewery gain are down on 2018 but reflect ihe continued significant reinvestmentin the

business to underpin future growth,

m ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS
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Located in our homeland of Scotiand, our Ellon HQ
continues to be one of the most technologically-advanced
brewing sites in Europe. The global headquarters for our
business, this site also employs more than 250 people in
Scotland.

Our brewing facility in Brisbane will begin operatingin
2020, but we previewed the launch by opening DogTap
Brisbane in 2019. The response from the local community
blew us away, as sales tripled forecast in the first few
weeks alone.

Launchedin 2017, our site in Columbus now brews beer for
a total of 13 American states, as well as being the home of
our higgest DogTap worldwide, and The DogHouse hotel,

named as one of TIME magazine's top 100 places on the

planet.

This brewing facility in the capital of Germany offers
us a site on mainland Europe from which to distribute
BrewDog-brewed beer. The site itself is also home to
adestination craft beer bar and educational centre for
homebrewers.

E ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS
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OURBARS

BrowDog now have now more than 100 baro globally, places
where you canindulge in everything that is great about craft
beer. Our amazing staff are knowledgeahle and passionately
ovangefical whonit comas to craft boers and we pride ourselves
on showcasing only the best, most exciting and flavoursome

£ER FOA Tk PEQSLE

r—— MRl
. i -

——r

UNIDN SQUARE™

craft beers that we can get our paws on fromall over the planct.
Our bars serve as key focal points in the craft beer revolution
aswe continue our mission to share the passion we have for
overything craft beer.

MANCHESTEROUTPOST
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GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For year ended 31 December 2019

NOTES 2019£000 2018 £000
Gross Revenue 4 . 214,806 171,619
Duty (40,280} {31,966)
Netrevenue 174,608 139,653
Costof sales {99167) (81912)
Gross Profit 75438 57,741
Operating expenses (88677 {58.021)
Gain on acquisition of Berlin brewery and taproom 15 14,248 -
Gain/(Loss)on disposal of property, plant and equipment 766 (303)
Other operating income 5 1956 974
Operating Profit 6 3733 391
Financeincome 9 10583 354
Finance costs 10 {3671) (1,321)
Profit /{Loss) before taxation 1116 | (576)
income tax expense 1 (65) (©17)
Profit /(Loss) for the year 1,050 (1493)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 1162 (1.373)
Non-controlling interests (112) (120)
1,050 (1.493)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations {344} (34)
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of tax (344) (34)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net of tax 706 (1,527)

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 818 (1.407)
Non-controlling interests {112} (120}
706 (1527)

L ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS



GRO

Asat 3¥December 2019

..2018£000_

_ ST e

Propeérty, plant and equipment
Right-of-use asset

Intangible assets

_Other non-current financial assets:

‘Currentassets

Trade'and other receivables
Inventory,

Corporalion tax receivable:
Cash and cash equivalents’

B
#6496
T LY

o

124,477

17016

v i
2y

141,493

37364
15,033
334
38978

NetAssetss

* Equity.attribuiable to equity holders of Ihé parent
~_Non-controlfinginterests

_ B 91706
Fotal assets T 233199
Cutrent fiabilities

Trade and other payables 35967
l.ease liabilities .
Financial liabilities 10.776

o L 46743

Non-current iiabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Lease liabilities
Fingncial liabilities
_Government grants

2399:
16,555.
e 2508
21462

Total liabilities

Equity

Called up share capital

Share prémium account

Treasury shares

Foreign currency translation reserve
Retainedearnings

68205

_ 164994

73
147535
{1185}
514
18148,

165,086

TotalEquity

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors.on 28th August 2020

. NAST =
Director

7
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... 2018 £000,

N

Asat 31Decenmber 2019
_NOTES,

Nometrront S
Property, plantand equipmenit 12
Right-of-use assets _ 22
Intangible assets 13
Othier, nen-current financia) assets

71,537
1294

28098 °
100,928

Cuitént assets,

Tradé and other receivables:
Inventory

Corporation téx receivable
_Cashandcash equivalénts . .

76,860
8900
434
34,633
120,827

_Totalassets _ T " 221756
Currentliabilifies S
Trade and other payables 18,948
Lease [iabilities -
Financial liabilities X 10690
T 20638
‘Non-currént liabilities
Deferred tax iabilities 2241
Lease liabilities -
Financial liabilities 16,555
Goverhment grants 2055
S - 20,851
Total liabilities 50489
Netassets . 171,267
Edity
Called ip sfiare capital 73
Shiare premilim a6count 147535
Treasury shares (1185)
Retained earnings. 24844
TotalEquity ... _ " 171267

The group has elecied to take the exempliof under §ection. 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not ta present the

companyingome statemerit; The 653 aftef tax recofded by the company for the year was £6 4 8,000/(2018:
y m A AA

prolitof £3,193,000). -
Signad on behalf of the Board of Direttors o 28 August 2020 JBWait: ASEH
: ‘Director Director
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

=2
35 o £ g
- E z b= ? & 52 23

2%0 92Eo0 280 B8, E££8, ~o 9860 20

283 2s8 858 558 3§58 38 528 38

w88 »s& k58 ££8 &£488 e& =zZzEa 28
At1January 2018 72 128,880 (1185) 6548 18,515 146,830 () 146823
Loss for theyear - - - - (1,373) {1,373) {(120) {1,493)
Other comprehensive 10ss - - - {34) - (34) - (34)
Issue of share capital 1 18443 - - - 19)44 - 19144
Issue of share capital - . : - 1007 1007 35 1042
in subsidiary
Share options granted - 501 - - - 501 - 501
Transaction costs - {989) - - - (989) - (o898
At1January 2019 73 147,535 (1185) 514 18149 165,086 (92) 164,994
Profit for the year - - - - 1162 1362 n2) 1,050
Other comprehensive loss - - - (344) - (344} - (344)
Issue of share capital - 10,667 - - - 10,667 - 10667
!ssue of §hare capital } : N _ 644 644 25 669
in subsidiary
Share options granted - 642 - - - 642 . 642
Share options exercised - a7 - - - 87 - 87
Transaction costs - {705) - - - {705) - (705)
At 31December 2019 73 15B 226 (1185) 170 19955 177,239 (179) 177060

19
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2019

£ z 2 &

280 e2o 380 £Efo - 20

288 298 988 358 oo

N nw oW v ol rwu - oo
At 1January 2018 ' 72 128,880 {1185) 21651 149,418
Profit for the year - - - 3193 3193
Issue of share capital 1 19143 - - 19344
Share options granted - 501 - - 501
Transaction costs - (989) - - ~ {989)
At1January2019 73 147535 (1185) 24844 171267
Loss for the year - - - (6158} (6,158)
Issue of sharecapital - 10667 - - 10,667
Share options granted - 642 - - 642
Share options exercised . 87 - - 87
Transactioncosts . _ - (705) - - (705)
At 31 December 2019 o 73 158226 {1185} 18686 175800

w ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS



GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2018 NOTES 2019 £000 2018 £000
Cashfiows from operating activities [
Profit/(Loss) before tax ihd (576)
Adjustments ta reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
(Gain) / Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (1.667} 303
Release of contingent.consideration 1,000} -
Gainon Acquisition of Berlin brewery & taproom (14,243} -
Depreciation 11014 7855
Amortisation of ROU assets 8502 -
lmpairment 8% -
Grantamortisation {149} {138)
Foreign exchange 1589 (1651)
Financialincome {1053 (216)
Financial charges 38671 1,321
Share based paymenl expense 842 501
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease / (increase) ininventory 380 {7.466)
Increasein lrade and other receivables 8.559) (11,058)
Increase in frade and other payables 54886 6.043
Interest recelved 303 217
Interest paid 1,540} (842)
Taxation paid 27y (400)
Taxation refunded 878 78
Netcash flow from / {used in) operating activities 4,700 (6.029)
investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (28,8881 (44,37}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 14739 -
Purchase ofintangible assets {28y -
Investment in an unlisted enlity 157 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries {net of cash acquired) 12022} (13.071)
Net cash flow used ininvesting activities (147261 (57,208)
Financing activities
issue of ordinary share capital adig 17683
Transaction costs of issue of shares (705 (989)
Proceeds fromgovernment grants 25¢ 453
Repaymenl of bonds (4833} (1)
Repayment of borrowings (247} {259}
Principle elements ol iease payments {7420) -
Hire purchase Payments / {Receipls) 6 88E {3160)
Net cash flow from financing activities 8212 13717
Net decreasein cash and cash equivalents (2214) {49,520)
Cashand cash equivalents at beginning of year 3978 88,498
Cashand cash equivalents at end of year o 38t 38,978

21
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2019

NOTE ___ _ 2019£000 2018 £000
Cashflows from operating activities
{Loss)/Profit before tax 0918 3974
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Gain ondisposal of property, plant and equipment (1.667) -
Release of contingent consideration (1,000] -
Depreciation 4008 3,065
Amortisation of ROU assets 441 -
Impairment 1479 52
Grant amortisation (149} (138)
Foreignexchange loss/{gain) 1555 (938)
Financeincome (L0531 {804}
Finance Charges 1,753 1,308
Share based payment expense 842 501
Working capital adjustments:
increaseininventory (1.953) (3,267)
Increasein trade and other receivables {3.8C2) (8113)
Increasein trade and other payables 2787 3567
Interest received 903 217
Interest paid (1,622) (975)
Taxation paid {2m {400}
Taxation reflunded 876 78
Net cash flows used in operating activities {2891 (2.873)
Investing activities
Investment in Subsidiary - -
Purchase ol property, plant and equipment {8.845) {26,109}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 14739
Purchase of intangible assets {388} -
Loan provided to subsidiaries g&sin {22,574)
Investment inan unlisted associate uer -
Acquisition of subsidiaries {net of cash acquired) {1,674 {12.856)
Net cash flows usedininvesting activities {14.810} {61,539)
Financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital 8372 16643
Transaction costs of issue of shares {705! (989}
Proceeds fromgovernment grants 251 -
Repayment of bond (1853 (1]
Repayment of borrowings {247 {259)
Principal elements of iease payments {434) -
Hire Purchase Receipls / (Payments) 7823 (3143)
Net cash flows from financing aclivities 12.547 12,241
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (5154 (52171)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 34633 86.804
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 28478 34,633

22
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1 GENERAL IN FORMATION
The fmanc:al statements of BrewDog PLC and its subsidiaries (collectivety,
thie group) for the year ended 31 December 2019 were authorised for
issuebythe Boardof Directors on 28 August 2020. The companyis
incorporaled in the United Kingdomunder the Companies Act 2006:

2:BASIS OF PREPARATION.

Statement of compliance

The consolldaled and parént company finangial statemenisaré preparéd
‘in dccordance with International Financial Repo rting Standards (IF| 'RS)
asadoptedby the European Union and applied inaccordance with the
iprovisions of the Companies Act 2006:

The consalidated financial statemerits have been prepared on a historical
Cos! basis, except for ottier ion-current financial assets that have,

been measired at fair vah.te The consolidated finaricial statements are
presenled in s!erimg andallvalues are rounded to tHe nearest thousand
i(E000); except as otherwiseindicatad.

‘Basisol consolidation.

" Thagroup financial slatements incofporata| the financial statemenisol
the company and entities conlml!ed by the company. Controlis achteved
where the company has the power 10 govern the linancial and operatmg
‘policiés of an érilily 50 as 16 obtdin benefits Iromits activities,

THE financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
repoting period aS he conipany, using cansistent accounting policles:All
mua-group assets and lnabxtrlres equity, income, expénses and cashiidvs
relating totransactions between members of the groupare eliminatedin
(ullonconsolidation.

Non-contralling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not’
attributable, directly and indirectly, to the parent company, Thisis
presenteéd within equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately
from equity, attributable 16 Gwnérs of the parent. Losses withina subs-dlary
are aliributed to the non-conirollinginterest even i lhal cesullsin adeficil
balance.

Going concern

Thedirectors continue {o closely monntor the Caoronavifus dutbreak: with
particular regard o, thewellbeing of their people and their ability to rnake
distribute and sell great beers.

Widespread protective measures have been putin place throughoul

the Group globally to respond ta the pandemic. All bars were closed:

.and brewing facilities ad|usted operatlfig procedures to ensure social
dlstancmg was rnamtamed Slaff whoare not currently fequired given the:
reduced operations have been Iurloughed For 6ur office stall many were.
furloughed or are working from home,

These'actions have sig il :camly impactedthecash flows generated
‘however, theimpact has been miligated| bythe expansion’of onfine sales
and increased distribution through malor retailers due tochanges in
consumers damands, and thautiligation of Gcwemment schemes such
as the Coronaviruss Job Retention Schéme énd the deferral af HMRC
paymenls Such preparation and planning has allowed thia Directors to
maxinise cash resources available tothe Group and, as far as possnble.
mitigate the impact of thevirus on the business:

As lockdown restrictions ease and we start to be allowed lo reopenbars
acrass our network we have put inplace a number of pro!edﬁve measures
{oensureweare cornptymg withvar tous governments guidelines gn socia!
dis lancnng irack and trace, face cavenngs and also turther enha nced

‘our, hygrene praclices. Our brewing facilities continue to operate withour
adjusted procedures and operation of shift patterns allows us to fimit the
riumber of staff onsite.

TES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.At31December 2019

“Thediredtors do not yet know what lurther. measures may need tobe put
in placé to contdin this virus, but are continuing t review and make plans
‘to inimise the likelihood of transmission'within BrewDog warkplaces and
retail outlefs.

Management have pe rformed slress lesting of cashflow lorecasts o
‘takeaccount of tre potenual lmpacls of Covid-19; mc!udlng adjuslments
“to capacity and expansion plans; and are satistied in the most severe,

yel plausile;'Downside’scenario, including the potential for a second
‘pandemicwavé that would imipact the group for a longer period including
into 2021, that thig group hids aceess 10 Sulfi icient hqundnly through the going
concernperiod.. Assuch, the dureclors have areasonable expectauon
Ahatthe Company andthe Group have adequate resources to cantinue
in gperational existence for the foreseeable future; Accordmgly, lhey
continue'to adopt the gaing concern basis Inpreparing the annual report
and accounts.

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

New standards and mterprelnuons

The company has con sideredalinew and amended IFRSsissued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that are mandatorily
effective for the year ending 31 December 2019.Where lhe changes affect
the company, thé rélevant applical ioh and disclosure has been made-

dunng the yearto 31 December 2019.The new and amernded IFRSS durifng
theyear are as detalled below:

. Annua_l Improvements to IFRS Standa 1ds 2015-2017 Cycle
+ IERS 16iLeases _
+ IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Incorne Tax Treatments:

Several other amendments and interprétations apply.for the first

tiniein 2019, but donot have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the gioup. The group has riot éarly adopted any standards:
interprelations or amendments lhat have beenissued, butare not yet
efiective.

IFRS 16 Leases

‘The group has adopied IFRS 16 Leases retrospectively from1 January.
‘2019 but hasnot restated oomparatlves for. lhe 2018 repottlng penod

‘a5 permmed under the specific fransition provisions in the standard. The
rectassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules;
are therélore recognised i the opening balance sheet ont January 2019.

On adoplion ol IFRS 16, th@ group recogriised leasg Nabliities in refation to
teases which had prevnously been ¢lassified as ‘operating 16asés under thé
‘pnnciples of 1AS 17 Leases: These iiabilities were measured at the presenit
valugof the remaining lease paymems discounied using ihe lessee’s
‘incremental borrowing rate as of.1 January 2019, The weighted average
lesseés incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1
Januafy 2019was 223%..

Practical expedients applied

Inapplying IFRS 161or the first time, the group has used the following
practical expedignts permstted by the §tandard:

applyingasingle diScount fale to a porticlio of leases with reasonably
simnar characteristics

~ accou nnng for operating léases With aréitialiing leasé lermof less than
12months asat 1January 2019 as short-term leases

+ excluding initial direct costs for the measGremenit of the right-of-Use
.asset at the dateof initial application,and

+ using hindsight in determining the, lease term where the contract
:contains optlons to extend or terminate thelease.

23
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Tha group has algo elected not to reassess whethera contract Is, or
contalns a.leaseal the date of initial appl ication. Instead; for contracts
enteredinto beloce the transition date the draup relied gnils assessment
made applying IAS 17'and Interpreiation 4 Determ rnmg whetheran
Anjangernent_gpgtamsa Lease.

Thelease liabilities of the Group as al 1 January, 2019 can barecoriciled to-
the opérating lease commitments as of 31 December 2018as foflows:

£000
Operating lease commitments 82001
asat 31 Decemiber 2018
Less;Impact of discounting (20151)
‘Add: Extension and termination: 6365,
optionis éasoriably certaln tobe
‘exercised
Lexse fiabilitles at 1-Janvary 2019° 67245

New standards and interpretations - not yet adopted

The féliowing standards and amendments and interpretations lb‘exis!ing,
standards have béen pubilshed and are mandatory lor thecompany's
accounllng penod begmnmg onorafler1 January 2020 or later periods,
but the, company has nal early adopted them:

». References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards {1 January
2020)

- IFAS 3 Business Combinalions. References to Conceptuat Framework it

IFRS Standards and Definition of a Business’

.+ IFRSY Fihancial instiuments: Disclosures. Interést fate bnchimark
reform (1 January 2020)

- IFRS 9 Flnancial Instruments. Interest Rdte Benchmark Reform

- 1AS 1 Presentation of Finangial Statements:Oefinifion ot catertal (1
January 2020}, References io Conceptual Framawork'in i IFRS Slandards
and ciassification of liabilities as current or non-current {1 January 2022)

- 1AS8 Accuuntmg policies, changes inaccounting estimates and errors.
Delinition of material and Relerences to Conceplual Framework inIFAS
Standards (l January 2020)

< Amendments loIAS 39 Financial Instruménts: Recegnition and,
Measurement. Interes! rate benchmarKrelorm {1 Jaruary 2020).

lis not ariticipated that the agplication of thie above standards and
amendments will have any materalimpact on the company’s financial
statements,

Cashand cashequivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet compnse cash atbank
.andin hand and short-term deposits withan original matunty of titres.
months or I8Ss. For the purpose of the cash flow statement, casharidcash.
eqaivalents are as defihed above and net of outstanding bank overdrafis.

‘Property, plant and équipinent

Tangible fixeddssets, other than land, are stated at cost or valuation less
depreciation. Depréciation IS provided at rales calculated o write ofi-
the cost orvalisation less estimated residual value of each asset over its
expected usefuliife, as (oflows:

tang not depreciated.

Buildings 2% oncost

EMENTS CONT...

{Long:term leasehold property over lease term

‘Plant and rriachinery 10-25%on'reducing baldnte.
and 33- 50% oncost:
Computet equipment 33%oncost

‘Fixlitres and ftings 20-50%oncost

Motor véhicles '25% on reducing balance:

Assels under construction not depreciated

Certain brewing equigment included within plant and machmery. is.
deprecialed al 10% onreducing balance method and has been allocated
aresidual valus &f belwegn 10% and 55% of cost, dependant onthe
equipment’s use.

Intangible assets-

lnlangnb!e asséls acquired separately are measured on initial recognmon
aleosl. Thecost of mlanglb!e assets acquired ina business combination
I the falr vélue as at the date of acqm sition. Fo!!owlng initial recognition,
.lntanglb[g_assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
aceumulatedimpairment losses. if any,

Internally generated inlangib!e assels’excluding capulaﬁsed developrnenl
.costs, are no! capitaliséd: and expenditure isrecognlised in the statement of
protit orioss wheniit s incurreg:

Theuseful lives of intangible asseis are assessed as either finite or
indefinite

lmanglble assets’ w:th hrule hves arg amomsed over their useful economic
theintanalble asset may, be |mpaired The amoitisation penod &nd e
amortisation method for an intangible asset wilha finite uselulfife are
feviawedal Iea.sl at the end of each reporting period. Changesin the
expected usefu | life 67 “the expécted pattérn of consumption of tuture
economic benefils embadiedin the assetare accounted lor by rhangmg
ihe amoniisation period ormethod,as appmpnate and arefreatéd as
changes In accounting éstimates. The émortisation expense on Intangible
assetswilh finite livesis recognised in Ihe statement of comprehensive
‘income in the'expense calegory consistent with the function of the,
‘intangible assets.

‘lmang:ble assets withindefinite useful lives are not amortised: but are,
‘fested far impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generaling
unitlevel, The assassmant ol indefinite life is reviewed anaually {o
determine whemer the andeﬁmte lite contmues tobe supporlabla If not, lhe

Géins or logses arising from derecognition of anintangible asset are
measured as the diflerence betweenthe net | disposal proceeds and the
‘carrying amount of the asset and dre fecognisedin the statément of profit-
orlass when the asset is derecogrised.

Non-current financial assets

Fixad asset investments are shown at cost less any provision for
impalrment. Thecompany assasses at each repomng ‘date whether. there
is any objective evidence that an assetisimpaired.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accountedior using the acquisition:

methiod. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregateof the
conslderauon trans!erred which is measured at acquisition date fair value,
;and the amouint of any/ non-contralinginteresis in the acquiree. For each
‘business combination, the group elects whether to méasure the non-
contrglling interests in the acquiree at fair valie ar at tha| proportionaté
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share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisilion-related costs are
expensed as incurred and included in operaling expenses.

When the group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets

and li2bilitles assumed (or appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms. economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. Thisincludes the separation
ol embedded derivativesin host caontracts by the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transterred by the acquirer willbe
recognised at falr value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration
classified as equity is nol remeasured and its subsequent settlementis
accounted for vsithin equity. Contingent consideration classified as an
asset or liability that is a financial insirument and within the scope of IFRS
9Financial Instruments, is measured et fair value with the changes in fair
value recognisedin the statement of prolit or loss in accordance with IFRS
9. Other contingent consideration that is not within the scope of IFRS 9

is measured at fair value al each reporting dale with changesin fair value
recognisedin profit or loss.

Goodwilllisinitially measured at cosl (being the excess of the aggregate
aof the consideration transferred and the amount recognised for non-
controlinginterests and any previous interest held over the net identitiable
assets acquired and liabliitles assurmed). If the latr value of the net assets
acquired isin excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the
groupre-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets
acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures
used lomeasure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. I
thereassessment still resultsin an excess of the fair value ol nel assets
acquired over the aggregate consideratian transterred, then the gainis
recognised in prolitorloss.

Eachof the graup's cash-generaling units that are expecled lo bensfil (rom
Llhe combination, irrespective of whether other assets or lfabilitles of the
acquiree are assigned lo those unils.

Where goodwill has been aflacated to a cash-generaling unit (CGU)

and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of. the goodwili
associated with the disposed operationis ncluded in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill
disposedin these clrcumstances is measured based on the relative values
ol the disposed operation and the portion ol the cash-generating unit
retained.

Revenue recognition

Revenus comprises revenue recognised by the groupinrespect of goods
and services supplied during the year, exclusive of value added tax and
trade discaunts but inclusive ol excise duly, Revenue is recognised in the
financial statements when the risks and rewards of owning the goods have
passed to the customer and when cash has beenreceived or is receivable.

Costof sales

Cost of sales comprises brewery, warehouse maintenance costs,
ingredients, packaging and direct staff costs.

Taxation
Currentincome fax

Currenl tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expecledto
be recovered from or paid lo the taxalion authorities, based on tax rates
and laws that are enacled or subslantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if il relales loitems that
are credited or charged to equity. Otherwise income tax is recognisedin
the statement of comprehensive income.

Defterred income tax
Deferredincome taxis recognised on all temporary differences arising

between the lax bases of assets and liailities and their carrying amounts
in the financial statements, with the {ollowing exception:

- Delerredincome tax assets are recognised only o the exteni that
il is probable thal taxable profits willbe available against which the
deductible temporary differences, carried forward tax credits or tax
losses canbe utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabiities are measured on an
undiscounted basis al the tax rates that are expected to apply when the
related assetis realised, or liability is settted, based on lax rates and laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Foreign currency translation
Transactions and balances

Foreign currency iransactions are lranslated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions.
Foreignexchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of

such lransaclions and from the translation at period end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income, The principal
forelan currencies used by the group are 1S doltars (3), Euro (€) and
Australian doliars (AUS S).

Group companies

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into
slerling at the rate of exchange ruling et the balance sheet date. Income
and expenses are translaled at welghted average exchange rates for
the year. Theresulling exchange diferences are recognised in other
comprehensive income,

Research and development

Research and development expendilure is wrilten off in (he year in which it
Isincurred.

Government granis

Government grants are recognised where thereis reasonable assurance
that the grant will bie received, and all attached conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, itis recognised as income
ona systematic basis over the periods that the casts, which it is intended
tocompensale, are expensed. When the grani relates to an asset, itis
recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the
related assel.

Leases and hire purchase

Assets obiained under hire purchase contracls or finance leases are
capitalisedin the statement of financiat position. Those held under hire
purchase contracts are deprechated over their estimated useiul lives, These
hefd under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful fives
or thelease term, whichever is the shorter. The interest element of these
obtigationsis charged to the statement of comprehensive income over the
relevant period. The capital element of the huture paymentsis \reated asa
llabifity.

Asindicatedinnote 2 above, the group has adopted IFRS 16 Leases
retrospectively from t January 2019 but has not restated comparatives

for the 2018 reporting periad, as permittedunder the specific transition
provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising
fromthe new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening batance
sheel on 1 January 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in

note 2. On adoption of IFRS 16, the group recognised lease fiabilities in
relation to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operatingleases”
under the principles of IAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at

the prasent value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the
lessee’sincremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate appliedto the tease liabilities on
1January 2018 was 223%

Financial assets

Financial assels are recognised when the company becomes party lo the
contracts that give rise to them and are classified as financial assets
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at iau'value lhrough pmﬁ: orlossor loansand receuvables.as anpmnnate.
Thecompany determlnes the classification of its financial assefsal.

initial recognlbon and wherealtowed and appropriate; re-evaluates

this designationat gachiinancial year—end. Whenfinancial assets are
recognisedinitially. they are measuredat fair value: bemg the transacbon
‘price plus, in the case of financiatasset not at fair; vakue through prof tor
Toss, directtyatt fibutable transactioncosts.

De-recognition of financial assets’

Afinancial asset (or, where apphcab!e apart of afinancial asset or part o
agroup of similar. financial assels) is derecognnsed when:.

+ thé righls to receive cash Hows irom the asset have expired; ar

~the compary hés transferred its rights toreceive cash ffows irom the
assetor has. assumedan  obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without matenar delay toa third party under a‘pass-through'
arrangement; and either:

~ the company has neilher translerred nor.retalned subslantlally all
the risksand rewards of the asset; but had iransferred control of the
assetor

« the company has transfefred substantially all the risks and rewards of.
theasset,

When the company has lransférred its rights taféceive Cash flows;

from an asset or has enteredintoa passAthrougn arrangement,and has
neither transferred nor retdined substanﬂally allthe risks and rewards

of the asset nor l!anslema Jof lhe asset; the assetis recogmsecl tothe
extent ol the oompanys contmulng Involvementin the assel. In that case,
‘the company also recognises anassociated Ilabullty The transterred,
assetandthe assoclated liability are measured ona basis that reflects
ke rig hts and obligations that the company has retained.

Impairment 6ffinancial assets

The Group fecognises analidwance tor expected creditlosses (ECLs)
ior all debtinsiruments not held at fairvalué through profitor loss. ECLs
are based on the diflerence between lhe coniractual cash flows due.

in accardance with the contract and all the cash flaws that thé group
expects toreceive, discounted at an approximatianol the orig inat_
effectivéinterest rate. The expected cash flows willinclude cash flows
from ihe sale of coltateral held or other.credit enhancements that are.
integral to the contractual terms;

ECLs are recognised in two stages For ctedit exposures tor which there
hias fot been a significant Increase in credit risk sinca Initial recogn ilion,
E€Lsare provided for credit losses that result fromde tatilt events that
are possible wilhin the next 12-monthis (a 12-month ECL). For thase credit
‘exposures forwhichthere hasbeen a significantincrease in credit risk
since; lnihal reoogni tion, a loss allowance [ reqmred (or credu loss es

tining of the‘default (alifetime ECL).

‘Fortrade recexvahles ang contract assets, the group appliesa simpiified
approachin calculahng ECL& Therefore, the group dees not track
changesin credit risk, But instead recognises aloss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at eachreporting date. The group has establls heda
provxslon fhatrix thatis based on| its historicalcreditioss experie nce,
adjusted for | lo:ward—lookmg faclors specific to the debtors and the
economic environfient.

Financial liabilities

Altfinancialliabilities are recognised lmllally at fair value and inthe case of
Joans and bofrowings. plus dtrectly attributable transaction costs.

Interest béaring loans and borrowings

methed.
Derecognition of financialliabilities

A financial liability i5 derecognsedwhen the abligation under, the liabitity

Jisd ischa:ged arcancelledor Fexpires. Wharg an exisling financiatliability
is replaced by another from'the same fender an substannally difierent.
‘\erfiis, or the térr

S ol anexisling liability are subslanlsally modplzed such
anexchange or modnﬂcallon is trealed as a derecognilion of the onganal

liability and the recognition of anewtiabifity, and the differencein the

respective carrying amounts s recognisedin the income statement.
Share-based paymenis

The group operates three equuy -setiled, share based compensation
plans. Thie {aif value of the employee services received in exchange for
the grant of the options is fecognised as an expense over the vesling
period. The \otal amount expensed dverthe vesting periodis determined
by reference o the fair value of the ophons atthe date on which they

were grarited.

Féir value is calculated withreference tothelast substantial share
purchase, Non-market perfo rmance vesting and service conditions are
includedin assumptlons ‘about thé number of options that are expected

‘o vest, At each bafance sheet date, the ¢ company revisesits, estimates of,

the number of options that are expected to vest.

The company recugnises the impact 6f the revision'to original estimates;
if any, in the income statement; with corresponding, ad;uslment toequity.
No expensels recogn-sed lor awards \hat do not ultimaiely vest.

The proceeds received riet of anydlrectly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capltal (nommalvalue) and share premiumwhen the
options ars exercised ang new sharesare issued,

Treasury shares

Breang PLC shares hetd by the group are deducted from equityas

"treasury shares, and afe fecognised 4l cost. Consideration received for

the sale of such sharesis also recognisedin equity, with any difference,
between the proceeds from salé and thé original cost being taken to
reserves. No gain or lossis recognisedin theincame statemént’ onthe
pun:hase sale; issue or.canceflalion of equity shares,

Invéntories

(nventories dre valued at the lower of cost and net reatisable value.

Costsincurred in bringing each product to its present location and
condition are accounted lor, as follows:

Raw materials - Purchase cost on a first-in, fifst-out basis.
Finisheid goodsand work In progress - Cost of direct materials and fabour

anda proportion of manuy lacturing overheads based on normal operating
capacity but excluding borrovwng casts,

Netreatisablavatseis the estimated selling price in the ordinary course

of business, less estimated cosis of completion and the estimatad costs
toséll.

Trade and othier recelvables.

Trade receivab!es, which generally have 60-90 day terms, are
recognised and Jcarriedat the lower of their original invoiced value:
and recoverable amount. Where the time value of money is material,
receivables are carried at amoriised cost.
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Trade and other payaT)iés

Trade payables are recognised inilially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the efiectivé interest method.

Laans

Loansare mn:ally recognised at cost. being the lair value of the

.consideration received net of r&suecosls assoclatedwith the borrowing.-
Loans are subsegquently measured at their amortised cost applying the

effecliva interest rate melhod,

Finance charges on the loans are recognised as finance costsin the
income statement:

‘Pensions

contributions are chargedtothef mr:Ome Statement as an expense inthe
pericd ta which the contributions relate Once the contributions have
been paid: there are no further paymenl obhgauons

4.REVENUE

Revenue represents thé invoiced amount of goods and services supplied;
inclusive of excise duty. Revenue is fécognised when the risks and

:rewards of owning the goods has passed to thé customers, Allitems are

stated net of value added tax and trade discounts.

The 2nalysis by geographical area olthe  group’srevenue issetout as
betav.

7: AUDITORS!REMUNERATION.

Thegroup paid the follovmgamountsto itsevditorsin réspect of the audil,
of the firancial statemenis and far other services pmvnded tolher group:

2018 208
. €000 . €000,
“Aldilof he financial statements 230 =
Tax advisory services- 2 2
_Q_Ihenjadvlsoryservices _{5 - -
T T o7 —

8.STAFF COSTS AND DIRECTOR'S EMOLUMENTS

a-Staff Costs’ 2009 . 2018:
... . FEogo £000,

Wagesandsalarias 48104 35321
Pension costs 1658 1,206
Socidl secirrity costs 4381 3289
Share based payment expense’ 350 3
' 54204 . . 39847

The previous excludes’ dfreclors remiinération. The company makes.
coniributions toa defined conmbuuon scheme for al eligible employees
{ip to amaximum of 1035 of selary. Contritations aré charged to the
incoma staterrient asincurred.

“The average monthly.number of employees during the year was made

2019 2018
Geographicalsegment £000 £000
UK T - {32357
Eutope 30,082 21003
USA and Canada 21004 13314
Rest of theworld! 8849 4345
) o '» .....m  2uges e
5.0OTHER! OPERATING INCOME )
2019 2018
. e £000, €000
' Releaseo(conhngeniccns;defabon ST aee” T T -
‘A&D tax credit 384 633
Otherincome o 572 3
S o 1956 o7a
201 208
: - ___fooo _ _£Q00_
Deprediafionof langible assels (nole 12) ol 7855
Amoflisation of ight-of-use assets {note 22)- 6902 -
Opgrating leaserentals - 5p2a.
Auditors remuneration (note 7) 307 258
Research and development 3200 -3187
Loss/(profit) on foreign exchange 1585  (1497)
tmpairment: propesty, plant and equipmient (Hote 12) 337
Impairmerit - goodwl (note 13) 277 -
_SM!ebasedpaymEnlexpense(mleZﬂ ‘ 642 S04,

options during the year.

wp asloliows: 2019 01
. S e n No. No.
Direciors: o o 8 9
Administration 180 4z
‘Production 232 199
Selling and distribution 183 a8
Bars:t_aﬂ 1154 794
" V e -1.76? . ‘.?il

b. Director’s remungration 2019, 2018
£000. . . . €000
Direclor'sremunieraion 1639, me
Pension contributions 123, 89
Share based payment expense 282 470
- 2054 d678

" Inrespect of the highest paid director:.

2019 2018

i £000 £000

Aggregaterenwneraion T 4ag’ 237
Pension contributions .4 . 24 )
. 485 281

‘Payientsinclude an extended notice payment agreed on tékingona

‘new ol and aré nof-racurring

2019 2018
e .£000 _ £000
Number of directors whoreceivad shiré. Ry 3
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NOTEST

9: FINANCE INCOME

b) Reconciliation of 1he total 2019 2018

2019 2018 income tax charge:
£000 £000 . . .f000: F000.
Bankinterest received 904 216 " Profit / {Loss) trom Continuing operations; NS (576)
Capital grant refease (note 26) g 138
" Yotalfinanceincome 1058 as4 “Fax calcutated at UK standard rate of corporation tax: 212 {i09)
" —_— ' of 9%
10.EINANCECOST {2018 -18%).
e R S 2019 2018 Expenses not deduictible foF tax purposes, 47 218
£000. 0000 ‘Olher fixed @sset related movemenis 55 326
Bankloans and averdrafis a7 184; Other timing differences a7 .90
Leaseinterest iromadoption of 2031 - Farelgn tax credits 5 6
IFRS 16 (hote 22). Tax gver provided in previous years (267} 37
“Hi int 22 o .
Hire purchase interest 300 212 Changein'taxlaws and rate’ 2 (76)
“,g”"d,’“"m' e — 923 e 925 Oefersed tax not recognisad {2361} 110
Tolal'hna_ncecosl‘sA —_— N S R8O 'expenditure, 73 (a7}
11:INCOME TAX Non-laxable income @) (i74)
" Gioup Unrecognisied tax 19s58$ in othiérjurisdictions 873 690
) ol Tax losses tillsed - (10).
3) Incorme tax on'profit N . . ’
forthe year 2019 2018 Chargeable Gains __ 130 :
£000 £000 " Income tax charge in the group statement of compre- 65  ‘9v
— —————— s — hensiveincome e e e e e e
UK comporation tax an thé profit for the year. - 57 — ~
Amounts over provided n previous years (193)- @7) Theincome tax expénse above s computed at profit before laxation
_ Foreign taxes L (33) R mulliptied by lhe effectiverate of corporation {ax in the UK of 199 {2018:
Total currentincome tax (136) 540 19%).
Delferred income tax: c) Deferred income tax
QOriginationand reversal oftemporary: 37 5100 The deférred income taxiricluded in the stalement of financial position'is:
differences as ollows: o
‘Deferredtax adjustmentsin previous (136) (133 Group Grotp ‘Company .Company
periods 2019 2008. 2019 2018
Totaldelerredincome taxcharge 201 _ . ... £000 . £O0O0 ,EOOO  £000
income tax charge nthe group siatement 65 Deferred tax Habilty ——
of comprehensiva income: . N - ) : . .
——— = e Temporary diflerences: 3712 247 3459 224
relating to property, plant
_andequipment-
 Deferredtaxasset )
_Taxlossescarriedforward _ 1059) (72) -
Net deferreditax iiabiity 2653 2399 _ 2400 _ 2241,
Deferredfaxinthe =~~~ )
income statement:
Temporary differences .201 377 159 429
relating to property, plant
andedquipment
) 201 377 159 429
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group Landand Longterm Fixturesand Motor Plantand Computer  Assetsunder Total
buildings leasehold littings vehicle machingry  equipment construction
property

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost:
At tJanuary 2019 54,527 16,699 13728 2380 51392 2137 4669 143443
Additlons 1462 9432 8982 135 5725 682 470 26,888
Acquisition of subsidiaries - - 7.376 7.854 - - 15,330
Disposals (7.591) {891) (731 (57) (688) (8) - (9.963)
Transfers 1230 30 8905 - (3572) 76 {4.669)
Exchange differences {498) 1o {50 2) (475} {11} - {926)
Al 31December 2019 49130 25,380 36.21 366 60336 2879 470 174,772
Depreciation:
Al 1January 2019 1454 2533 8101 147 7918 812 - 18.966
Charge for the year 1,088 946 5467 47 2676 778 - 1"noa
Ondisposals 78) (128) {324) - (68) (3) {602)
Impairment < 337 - - - - 337
Transfers - @ 2237 - {2,235) - - -
Exchange differences {1 (14} {66) {n (51 {2} (135)
At 31December 2019 2474 36N 13415 193 8241 1586 29580
Net book value:
At 31 December 2019 46,656 21709 227986 173 52,095 1,283 470 145192
Al 31December 2018 53,073 14166 7628 143 43473 1,325 4669 124,477

Included previous are asseis held under linance leases or hire purchase

contacts as tolfows:

Plant and
machinery
£000
Net book value:,

Al 31 December 2019 22714
At31December 2018 1516

Depreciation charge for the year:
310ecember 2019 2764
31December 2018 2146
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

Company Land and Longterm Fixturesand’ Motor Plantand Computer Assetsunder. Toia
buildings leasehold fittings. vehicle machinery  equipment construction
property

£000 £000 €000 = £000 £000 £000 £000  £000
Cost: o B
AtiJanuary 2019 ‘37929 i 632 202 35434 1778 4669 80656
Additions 1476 123 1845 78 4723 600 - 8845
Disposals (7.591) - (285) - - - - {7.876)
Transfers 1337 - ‘6828 - (3572) 76 (4.669) -
 At31December 2019 33151 134 9020 280 36585 2455 - 81625
Depreciation:
At1Janusary 2019 1061 2 48 120 6703 726 - 9120,
Charge lor the year 433’ 5 1492 35 1416 627 - 4,008
Disposals 78} - - - - - - (78)
Transfers - - 2234 - {2.234) - - -
At 31December 2019 1416 7 4344 155 5975 1353 - 13050
Net book value:
At31December 2019 31735 oowr 4876 125 30610 1102 - 68,575

At 31December 2018 36.868 N 9 ) 214 82 28,64t 1053 4569 71537

Inchided previous are assets held under hire purchase contacts as follows:

Pl and
vkt
£000
Net book value:

At 31December 2019 22628
At 31December 2018 15116

Depreciation charge for the year:
31December 2019 2754
310ecember 2018 2146
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13, INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

14.0THER NON:CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

Group. Other  Goodvdt Brerg  Osirbiion Yot Group, Unlisted
development! Rights, ’ tvestments

£000_ E000 £000 £000 . Cost e e s £000.

Cost o At1January 20ig' R ST T

AYY Jariuary 2019 e 15568 . 1288 W08 Addition of Grown & Hops - I/

Additions - 768 42 810 A__léj Deoember2019 - N

Acquisitionof’ - 3708 - - 3706 o =

subsidiaries -

) ) Net book value

Transler {39); : L3 - .

— LI e .At31December 2019 157
AiSlDecemberZOlQ 13 19,274 807 16 2532 ———r R
—— = s E—— = AtSlDecemher2018 -
‘Armortisation — —— —
At January 2019 - - . = . ‘Company. Unfisted Shares Total,
‘Amartisation 15 38 - - 153 ‘investments ingroup
P ) unidertakings
UL LN L SO - £000 €000 £000
At31December 201-9 1}5 315 - - 430 At1January 2619 . .28,098 28,098

Additions 3 500 s00
Net boak value: Acquisition of associate 157 - 157
At 31 December 2019 - 18959 807 133 21102 Acquisition of - 3820 -3820
— e — subsidiarleS . . . . v o
AlS‘iDecember2018 i54: l5.568 - 1294 17,016 — ——— N S By Y T T e T
...... S : : At31Decemberooy T te7 | @348 32575
DurmglhayearloSlDeoemberzma Good\vlllrelallngtomternallonalreiall o v o
cashgeneraling unils was tmpaired by £277.000: Thiswas due o [radingin B .
these bars not meehng \he company’s expectations: Depreciation £000 £000. £000,
AltJanuary 2019 - .
Company Brand’ Oistritwtion Toial . .
‘development ‘Rights En;:a vl:"jnenl i . : 1_'479- L 2
L At31December 2019 - 1479 1479
. . _ ,COOD cg_op —_ TN . el .‘ — ‘,“
Al1January 2019 - 1294 1294 _Nel book valug: e - . .
Additions 768 . 768, A At31 December 2019 R4 30839 31096
Transter from anothér. 38 - 39 L e
_grawpatcost AP . AL31December 2018 - 28088 28098
~ AL3tDecember 2019 807 1294 2401 ‘ e e =

Ouring the year fo 31 December 2019 investments in [nternationat retail
cash generaling units were lmpaired by £229 000 Thiswasdueto
trading in these bars not meeting our expectauons

The trading and het asséts of Lone Woll Spirits Limited was transferred

‘lothe Cumpany during the'year, and thieinvestment in Lone Woll was

fullyimpalred, resulting ina 'charge to the Company income statement ot

'£1,250,000.,
‘Farthe year ended 31December 2019, the {ollowing subsidiaries are

entitiedtoan exempﬂon {rof auditunder section 478A of the Companies
Act 2008 relating to subsadlary companies; Lone Wall Spirits Limited,
Hawkes Cider Limited and BrewDog Intemational Limited.
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Detailzof the investmentsin which the company.holds 20% or more of the,
nominal value of any class of share capitalareas follows:

Name of Holdings; Countrvo! Froportiono! | «Natureof’
compainy B "’:‘k:\' . W"x;!:“:g“’ business,
Subsidigiy T e ' B
undertakings:
BrewDogRelai  Ordinary  Scollandi 100% Bar
LImited (1) operator
LoneWollSpirils ~ Ordinary.  Scattand 100% Dormant
Limited (1)
BrewDogAdmin  Ordinary  Scdttand 100% Dormant
Limited (1)
Overworks Ordifiary.  S¢olland 1003, Dormant’
Limited (1)
BrewDog. Ordinary  Scotland 100% ‘Holding’
tternational company
Limited (1)
Draft Housé: Ondinary  England 1009%. Bar,
Holding Limited' Qoperator
(2),
Hawkes Cider Ordindry  Erigland 100% Cider
Limited'(3) producer
Brev/DogGmibH  Ordinary  Germany 100% Bar
) operalor &
breviery:
BrewDogGroup  Ordinary.  Auislralia 100% Holding
Australia Pty company
L£1d (5)
BrewDogdo. ‘Ordinary’  Brazil 100% Bar.
‘Brasil Comercio aperator
deAfimenlos e
Bebidas Ltda {6)
BrewDog Ordindry  Bélgium 100%- Bar
Belgium SPRL (7} cperatar.
BrewDog Gioup  Oidifary HongKong 100% Holding
HK Ltd (10) company:
BO Casafiova Ordinary Spain 100% Bar:
SLE) operatar
‘BrewDag Bar Ordinary :South Korea: 70% Bar’
iKorea (13) aperator
BrewDog USA Ordinary’ usA o7%% Holding
Inc (14) company-
BrewDogMedla  Ordinary USA 100%- Holding
Inc {14y company
BrewDog  Oidinary  Sweden 100% Holdingi
Siveden AB(20) -compariy’

‘@t

; E
. N s.n008

Indlrecllyheld L B ) B

" DraftHouse TB Lm'uted @ Ordinary ~ England
Draft House NC Limited (2) Ordinary  England
BrewDog Verwaltungs UG (4) Ordingry  Germany
BrewDog Brewing Australia Pty Ltd (5). Ordinary  Australia
BrewDog Canada tAc(8): Ordinary  Canada
BrewDog BarsFrance SAS (9): Ordinary  France
Bryggimesier Bb AS (12) Ordinary,  Norway
‘BrewDog Breiving Compariy LLLC {14), Ordinary USA.
R;e’rwl)og Brewing Compiary Frankfintont LG ~ Ordinary.  USA
8rewDog Dogtap LLC (14) Ordinary- USA.
BrewDog Doghouse LLC (14) Ordinary’ USA
BrewDog Short North LLC (14) Ordinaiy: Ordinary’ USA
BrewDogLicensing LLC (14) Ordinary’ usa
BrewDo3 Piltsburgh LLC (14) Ordinary USA
BrewDogindianapolis LLC (14) USA, Ordinary USA
-BréwDogNYC LLC (14) Ordinay, USA
BrewDog Coliimbus LLC (15) Ordinary USA
DrinkTVLLC (16) Ordinary.  USA
DrinkTV Inc (16} Ordinary. USA
BrewDoglreland Ltd (17) Ordinary”  Ireland
Kabushi Kaisha BrewDog Japian (18) Ordinary'  Japan
BrewDog ltaly SRL{iS) Ordinary Italy
BruDogMalmo AB (20) Ordinary ~Sweden
BruDog Bar GBG'AB{20) Oidifary  Sweden
IBruDidg Norrkoping AB{20) ‘Ordinary ~ Sweden
BruDog Sodermatm AB (20) Ordirdiy ~ Sweden
BiuDog Bar St Eriksgatan AB (20} Ordinafy ~ Sweden

(1) Registered office address; Balmacassie Commercial Park;
‘Ellon, Aberdeenshire, AB418BX

{2) Ragistered office address; 3rd and 4th Floar,
Fergusson House, 124128 City Road; Lonéian, ECIV2N

{3) Registered office address; 82 and 96 Druiid Street,
London, SE12HO

(3) Registered office address; IM Marieipark 23;
12107;Berlin, Germany

(:) Fiegnslered office address; Level 29/12 Creek Stree),
Brisbane City. aLb 4000

{6} Registered office address; 41 Rua Coropé's = Pinhgiros.,
SaoPadio-SP, 05426-010, Brazil

(_7) Registered office address; Putlerie 20, 1000 Brussels, Belgium

(8) Registered office address: 2800 Park Place,
666 Burrard Street, Vancouver, BCV6C 227

ANNUAL REPORT &ACCOUNTS

32



(9) Registered office addrass; 1 rue Favart, 75002 Paris

(10) Registered office address: Suites 3701-3710,
37/F Jardine House, 1 Connought Place, Central, Hong Kong

(1) Registered office address: Calle Casanova 69,
08011, Barcelona, Spain

(12) Registered office address: Marlwvelen 57,0505 Oslo

(13} Reglstered office address; (04780} 12,
Seongsuil-ro 4-gii, Seongdong-gu, Seoul, Republic of Korea

(14) Registered office address; 36 Gender Rd,
Canal Winchester, OH 43110

(15) Registered office address; PO Box 361715,
Cotlumbus, OH 43236

(16) Registered office address: 1209 Orange St
Wilmington, DE 19801

(17) Registered oftice address: 2 Grand Canal Square,
Dublin, Ireland, D02 A342

(18) Registered office address; Saitoh Building 1F, 5-3-2,
Roppongi, Minato-ku, Tokyo

(19} Registered office address: Corso Verceili 40, 20145, Mitan
(20) Registered office address; Baltzarsgatan 25 211 36 MALMO

15.BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Acquisitions in 2019
Acquisition (rom Stone Brewing GmbH

On 30 April 2019, the Group acquired certain assets and employees from

Stone Brewing GmbH.
Assets acquired and liabilines assumed

The lair values of the identifiable assels andliabilities as at the date i

acquisition were
Assets Fair value recognised on acqui-
sitlon €000
Tangible fixed assels 15,029
Financial assels 514
15543
Liabilities
Financial liabilities (1,237)
(1,237)
Totalidentifiable net asseis at fair value 14,306
Gain onacquisition 14,249
Purchase consideration 58

The totalconsideration paid was £58.000 and was cash settted. The lair valye
of net assets acquired was £14.306,000, resuitingin agaln of £14,249.000,
This gain has been disclosed separately on the face of the income statement.

The revenueincludedinthe consolidaiedincome statement since 30 April
2019 conlributed by the assels acquired was £3,317.000, with atoss of
£1.375000.

Had the assets been acquired and consolidatad [rom 1 January 2019, the
consolidated income statement would have included revenua of £4.976,000
and aloss of £2,063,000.

Sloneoperated the sile in Berlin for three years, and despite best efforts,
struggled to make inroads to the German market. This coupled with the ability
of BrewDog to move quickly and complete the acquisition resultedin the
purchase gain,

Acquisition of Brudog Sweden AB

On1March 2019, BrewDog pic acquired 100% of the voting shares of Brudog
Sweden AB, an unlisted holding company based in Sweden. This company
ownsthe share capital of five subsidiaries, each responsible for operating a
bar in Sweden.,

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identillable assels and liabilities of Brudog Sweden AB as
at the date of acquisition were:

Assets Fair value recognised on acqui-
sition €000
Fixtures and Fittings 242
QOlherassels 19
Inventory 32
Cash& Cash Equivalents 146
538

Liabilities
Financial liabilities (353)
(353)
Totalidentifiable nel assets at {air value 186
Goodwill arising on acquisition 3635
Purchase consideration 3821

The total consideration pald lor the acquisition was £3,821,000, with
£1,.821,000 settied in cash, and the remalning balance of £2,000.000 being
setlfed by the issug of 84,211 shares o the owners of Brudog Sweden AB.
Theissue of shares to the owners of Brudog Sweden related wholly to the
acquisition of control.

The revenueincluded in the consolidated income statement since 1 March
2019 were contributed by Brudog Sweden was £2,425,000. Brudog Sweden
incurred a pretax profil of £23,000 over the same period.

Had Brudog Sweden been consglidaled irom 1 January 2019, the
consolidated income would have included revenue of £2,910.000 and a profit
ol £28,000.
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Acquisition of Kabushiki Kaisha BrewDog Japa-

On8 January 2019, the Group acquired 100% of lhe share capital 6f KabushKi:

Kaisha BrewDog Japan, an unlisted company that operates a barin Roppongi.
Japan.

Asséts scquired and lisbilities assumed

The fair values of the defitifiable assets and liabilities of Kabushiki Kaisha
8rewDog Japanasatthedate of acquisition were;.

Assets Fair value recognised on acqi-
sition 9000

Fixtures and fittings- 59
‘Financial assels’ 203
Inventory 8
[Cash8CashEquivalents .. . s
i —— P

.'@-.iabilities

 Firancialiatilis 63}
O e
“Totalidentifiabls et assets al far value T 263
Goodmllarlomgonacqulsrtlon- S o 7,
Purchaseconsideration )  3Ba

‘The tolaloonsuderahon paud for lheacqunslmn was £364,000 and was cash
settled.

The revends Included ifi the consoiidatcd incomo statcmcnt since 8 Jonuary
2019.contributed romihe Company was £T10,000. Tho Companyincurred
pre-tax loss of £68,000 over the same périad,

Acguisitions in 2018
Acqulsition of Draft House Holding Limited

On 26 March 2018, the Group acquired 100% of ihe vating shiafés of Draft
House Hotdmg Limited, an Unlisled company based iri'London which
operate bars, pnmariiy infe London area.

Assets acquired and Yabilities assumed

The fair values of the kténlifidblg assels andfiabilities of Draft Hotise:
‘Holding Limited as at the date ol acquisilion were:

Assets IFair value recognised on acqui-
sition EO00

Property. plant and équipmem 5938
Financial assels 1325
Jnventory e 203
— = SR _7466~

Liabilities’

 ‘Financial fiabifiies .. (e2s3)
_ e 16253)_
Totalidentiflable net liabilities at fair valug. 1213
Goodwil arising on acquisifion . . 10453

Puchasecorsidersion 7 1666

) THEFINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

"The total consideration paid for the acquts-hon was£10666.000, allcash
-seftled. The remaining £1,000.000 was contingent upon Draft House  mesting

defined sales and EBITDA targets for the 12 manths to 31 October 2019.As
these targets were not meét this amount hasbeen reoogmsed in theincome.
slatemient in 2019,

Therevenue included in the 2018 consolidated income statément since
26 March 2018 conLributed by Oraft House was £9,782, 000.Dratt House
Incurred a protit of £89,000 over ihesame period:

Had Draft House been cnngoqualed from 1 January 2018. the consolidated
incom@ Staternént would have included revenue of £12597.00Q and a loss of
£83,000.

Acquisition of Hawkes Bfewing'Company Lid {name chafiged to Hawkes
Cider Limited post acquisnlon)

On4 Aprll 2018, the Group acquired 1009 of the vating shares of Hawkes
Brewing Company Ltg, anunlisted company basedin 'LoAdan whichisa
brewer of craft cider.

Assets acquirad and liabilities assumed

The'iairvalues of the identifiable assels and liabilities of Hawkes Brewing
CompanyLtdas at the date of acquision were;

Assets Fair value recognised oR'acqui-
silion €000
Property. plant and equipmént 243
Financial assets 300
‘.1gvenlory}' e o 46°
o 683
Liabilities
Financialiabilities s
- —————— .—,(39&1,,
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 305
Goodwilarisingonacquisition . . 8715
Puchaseconsideraliontcansterred. .. " 4020

e G evaakbw ek AW c

Thetatal consideration pa:d for the acquisition was £4,020,000:£2.020 000
of the conslideration was settledincash at the completlon dale, and the
remammg £2,000,000 was settled by the issue 0l 84,211 sharéStothe owners

-of Hawkesin May. 2018.The issue of shares (o theowners of Hawkes related
‘wholly to the acquisition of cantrol and none relates to the provisionof future

services by a stiarehalder: who remained émployed by Brawoog lollowmg the
acqwslhon

The revenue included in the 2018 consofidated lncome statefiént since 4 April
2018 contributed by Havikes i Wwas £1656,000. Hawkes incurred a pre-tax loss
of £142 000 over the same period..

Had Hawkes been consolidaied from 1January2018 tHe consolidated income
statement would have included revenue of £1914,000and a loss of £186,000.

Acquisition of Bryggriiester Bob AS

InFebruary 2018, the Graup acquired 100%of the voting shares of
Bryggmaster Bob AS, anuniisted compairiy based in Norway which operates
abar.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

Tha falr values of theidentifidhlg asséts and tiabijities of Bryggmester BobAS
at the date of acquisilion were:




Assets Fair value recognised on actii-
sition £000
Property. plant ang equipment 12
Financial assets- ao-
Inventory 35
Cashandcashequivalents 20
— — i
Liabilities
_Financial liabllities 198)
L N -
Totalidentifiable net liabililies al fair value (19)
Goodwnllansmgonacqu:smon B ) B ' ) 274;
Purchaseconsaderahonlransrerred 255

The revenueincluded in the 2018 consoiidated inédmie statement sincé
February 2018 contributed by the Company was £763,000.The loss
incurred by the company over the period was £70, 000.

Had Bryggmester Bob AS been consdlidated irom 1 January 2018,
the'consolidaled income statement would have incliidédrévéanue of
£1,017.000 and a loss of £93.000.

Acquisition of BrewDog do Brasil Comercio de Alimentos'e Bebidas Lida

On 4 Jdinuary 2018 hie Group actuired 100%of the voting shares of Brev/Dog
do Brasil Comercio de Allmentos e Bebidas Ltda, ani Unlisted company based
in Brazilwhich operatesa bar.

Assets sequired and ligbilities assumed,

The fair values of theidentifiable assets and liatiitities of BrewDog do Srasil
Comercio de Alimentos e Bebidas Lida as al the date o acquisition were::

‘Assets iFaif valué recognised on acqui:
:siliof £000

Property, plant and equipment 174
Financia asseis . , T -
)

Liabilities.

 Finangial abilities, {64)
_{ea)
Forat ifentifiable nat asséts at fair value Vg
Goodwiil arising 81 acquisition i L o _c'lj__

“\Purchase consideration o 170’

Acquisition retated costs of £24.000 were included within Brcwoog.. incoma
statement for the year ended 31 Decémber 2018, »

Therevenue included in the consolidated incom statement sifce 4 January
2018 contributed by the Company was £489,000. The loss intuitred by the
corripany ovér the period was £89,000.

16. TRADE:AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

fhe'céi'n‘dﬁg v‘a’lixé o'f fi nanclal assels approxima{es lair value, T‘he carrying

Group- 2019 2018
. . £000 £000
Traderecewables T T T 3432 T 27208 '
Prepaymients and other receivables nia 10,158
" 45923 37364

A Ty WA s is < aspey s

Trade anid other recewables due aﬂer oneyear amounted 10£2,295 000
(2018: 2211 g 000}

Company. .2019 2018
s .. :£000 . EG00
“Traide féééivables 31918 28140
Prepayments ahd other recefvables 3486 5462
Recelvable from gioup urdertakings 63,285 45258
- 98889 _ 76860
Group Neither past due Past dlie ut ot
. notimpaired fimpaired
Total <30 30-60 60-90 60-90  Over90
ddys days days days days
£000 €000 000 £000  £000 ¥0o
2619 34132 12480 12050 2664 1706 5232
208 27206 D12y 0OM 1570 1631 2873
Company Neilher past due ‘Past duie but not
’ : ‘notimpaiiéd lmaalred .
Tolal <30 30-60 60-90' '60-90 Over90
days days days days' days
. __£000  £0DO  £000 £000. £000.  £000
20187 31918 11967 1922 2539 1706 3784
2018 26140 9496 10800 1573 16 2640
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17.INVENTORY 20, FINANGIAL LIABILITIES
Growp il 2018 Graup 2019 2018
o .. ,E000 E0Q0 o ‘20“0'0 £060
Rawmaterils 4483 " 3067 c 1—‘ - . X000
urrent:,
Workin progress 1183 1730 ) ) ..
HOSIpI0g ) X o £1,820,000 bank loan 13 143
Finished goods and goods for resale’ 8987 10,236 £2.000/000 banklo 57 157
e o - 2,000,000 bank loan
14,653 15033 .
oo i i £5.000,000 bank lgan, 5,000 5,000
Company. 2019 2018 6% non-convertible bonds. 641 2300
£000 £000 Obiigations under. 4542 3176
—— 55 zéa‘é; Hiire piifchase contracts
wmate A : — —— - .
o o Total current borrowings: 10,583 10776
Workiin progiess 1056 1179 N - _j‘l-..,j,,.,.;“.,, —_—— —
. . N on-current:
Finished gGods and goods ldrresale 6639 4732. £1.826.060 bainkloi g g64
e At e T - .£1.820, nkloan :
10,853 8900 S .
rm——r T — £2,000,000 bank loan’ 67 1.294
18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Obligations undér hire 0818 4288
‘ purchase contracls
foup. 1 1 P -
Grauip 2019 208 7.5% non-convertible bonds 8998,
0 £0I — - : —
T .‘E‘.)no_'_';'.—..*..::p%:- . Total non-current borrowings 16,555
- 35,164 ;38)97,8A e e — —
Company 2018 2018 Company 2018 20i8
) . N £000 . RO0O. .. _£000 £000
Cashatbankandinhand 20479 34633 Current: T
T T T £1820,000 bankToan 143 143
Cash at bank earns interes! at lloating rates baséed on daily bank deposit o ‘
rates. The carrying value of linandial instruments approximates (sir value, The £2,000.000bank loan 157 157
carrying amoint of thé above items represents the maximum credit expdsure. £5,000.000 bankloan 5,000 5000
e e ) 6% fon-convertible bands 641 2300
19:TRADE'AND OTHER-PAYABLES Obligationsunder- 4,599 3.090
The carrying valie of financialinstruments approximates fair vatue. hrepurchasecontracts o
Totalcument bériowings, 10540 10680
Group 2019 2018 Non-ciiient: 77 T T
— - SUE cooo ——— ""‘,90?, £1820,000 bankloan 844 954
Tradepayables 10431 1477 £3000000 bankloan 167 1204
Accruals and other payables: 23390 i7.298 Obligations under hire 988 4298
Taxesand socialsecusity 6597 4392 purchase contracts, '
T 40418 - 3567 75%non-convertiblebonds 9999 9999
e R _ Totalnon-current borrowings .?_1,8_28 “1‘55‘_{5‘
‘Company 2019 2018 ' T '
. €000 FOOO
Trad payables 4502 9459
‘Accruals and other payabies 14,576 6,765
Taxesand socialsecq_rity_ 3663 2824
e 22741 18948,
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Bankloans
£1,820.000 bank loan

This lixed rate loanis in the name of the parent company. originally for a
maximum of £1,820,000 and is repayable by monthly instaiments unti? October
2027 and bears interest al 1.4% over the baserate.

£2,000,000 bank loan

This fixed rate loanisin the name of the parent company, originally lor a
maximum of £2.000,000 and Is repayable by moanthly instalments until May
2029 and bears interest at 1.43 over the base rate. This loanis secured by a
mortgage over the fand and buildings.

£5,000,000 bankloan

‘This fixed rale loanis in the name of the parent company, originally for a
maximum of £5,000,000 andis repayable ondemand. It bears interest at 1.4%
over the baserate.

6.5% non-convertible bonds

In November 2015, the groupissued £2,312,000 non-convertible bonds, which
matured in November 2019. During the year bonds tolaliing £1.658,000 were
re-paid. The purpose of the bond was to finance expansion. The bonds were
issued with aninlerest rate of 6.5%, paid bi-annually. The amounts not repaid
of £642,000 were reinvested into the new four year 696 bond. Applications

for this new bond finalised in January 2020 and theréfore at year end, these
amounts were repayable on demand.

7.5% non-convertible bonds

In January 2017, the group issued £10.000,000 non-convertible bonds with a
maturity in January 2021. The purpose of the bond was to finance expansion.
Thebonds were issued with aninterest rate of 7.5%. Inlerest is paid bi-annually
with subsequent repayment of £10,000,000in January 2021.

The bank loans are secured by standing and floaling charges over the assets
of the group. In addition, there is an untimlied cross guarantee between
BrewDog PLC and BrewDog Retail Limited..

The camying value of financialinsiruments appraximates (air value.

21.CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Group 2019 2018
£000 £000

Contracted for but nol providedin the financial. 1835 8656

slatements

Company’ 2019 2018

» A £000  £000

Gontracted for bul nat provided in the financiat 213 6098

statements

22 LEASES

Lease agreements where the group is lessee

The group has entered into commercial leases on certain land, buildings and
equipment. These leases have an average duration of between 3 and 25
years, Certain property lease agreements contain an option for renewal, with
such options being exercisable three months before the explry of the lease
lerm atrentals based on market prices at the time of exercise. Thare are no
restrictions placed upon thelessee by entering into these leases.

Total future minimumiease payments under leases:

Group 31Dec tdan
Amounts recogrised in the balance sheet 2019 2018

£000 £000
Right-of-use assets net back value o
Buildings 97708 66,709
Vehicles 535 297

Equipment 220 239
' 98464  67.245

310ec 1Jan
2019 2019
. £000 £000

Lease fiabilities
Current 7794 5400
Non-current 97922 61845

105713 67245

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019 financial year were
£38,22,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONT...

Company

Group 2019 2019 2019 2019
Amounts recognised in the Amounts recognised in the
statement of profit of loss £000 £000 statement of prolit or loss €000 €000
Amortisation of right-of-use assets Amortisation of right-of-use assets
Buildings 6646 - Buildings 223 -
Vehicles 208 . Vehicles 182 -
Equipment 48 - Equipment 36 -
Amortisationinciudedin operaling profit 6902 - Amoriisation inchdedin operating profit i 441 -
(rotes) = —
2019 2019
2019 2019
R €000 €000
£000 £000 e -
- - - Interest expenseincludedin finance cosls 131 -
Interest expense includedin finance costs {note 2,031 -
10) )
23.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Foreigncurrency risk
Company 31Dec 1Jan © Y
Amounis recognised in the balance sheet 2019 2019 Thefollowing table demonstrates the sensilivity to areasonably possible
change in Sterling against the US dollar and Euro sxchange rates with all
R £000 £000 other variables held constant, ol lhe group’s profit before tax (due to foreign
Right-of-use assels net book value exchange translation of intercompany balances). The impact of iranslating
- the net assels of oreign operations into stering is excluded iromthe
Buildings 6367 416 sensitivity analysis. There are no effects on equity beyand thase on profit
Vehicles 494 228 betore tax,
. Change In Sterling vs Effect on profit
Equipment 140 148 US Doliar / Eurg rate betore lax £000
7001 792 2019 .
US Doltas/Sterting +10% (3496}
31Dec 1Jan -10% 3196
2009 2018 _
‘0000 £000 Euro/Slering +10% 799
Lease liabilities i -10% (798)
Current 705 363 2018
Non-current 12122 429 US Doliar/Sterling +10% 3.022)
12827 792 -10% 3,022
Euro/Sterling +10% 153
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2018 financial 0% (153)
yearwere £6175,000, During the year a gain of £1,567.000 '
was recognised on the Sale and Leaseback of Hop Hub. Cash
consideration of £14,769,000 was received {or this property, which
was acquired in June 2018 for £7,5691.000.
m ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS: 38



24. SHARE CAPITAL .25.RESERVES
Group dnd company 2019 2018 2018; 2018 “Treasury shares

. - ARO. Treasury shares represent the ost of BrewDog PLC shares

NQO—OO —— ‘”'.“:'QQQ‘ . No000. . £000 :purchased in the market and held by BrewDog PLC. :

“ Aliotted calied up and I . .
Ordinary A'shares 'Foreign currency translation reserve
AtiJanuary 43625 43 43625 ‘43 The loreign currency translation reserve is used to record
) S Lo ) A exchange drfferencesansmglromthelranslallonollhe financial
Share options exercised 81 - - * statements of foreign subsidiaries.
Issued during the year 85 - - - 26. GQ)I ER NM EN_;T:GRANTS
' 4379 43 43625 43 Group 2019 2018
T N ‘ _ o - £000_ . £00O
Group and company 2019 2019 2018 2018 ] AnJanuary - o e o j 2508 2393
o —— - S o
g’,df,’;‘r'ycg”se:a‘,’fs"”d Tty p""d Hequired on'business combinations 723 .
At 1Janiaiy 12901 3 2076 12 Translation o grants denominated in (28 -
= : - foreign curfency
igsited through Equlty 1 9, - 1 o .
Burbs ghEquity for 53 825 Released (0 the statement of {149) (138)
At 31Décembei’ 13.440. 1 12,901 i3 ——— - ———
MSiDecember’ | ja0 B\ wsr B At 31 Datember 3304 2508
Group and company, 2019 2019 2018 2018 2019. 2018
Lo Naooq £000 No:000 £000 e £000:  £000
Allonedcallad up and fully paid ’ o Cumrent R T 185
Praferred'C Ordinary shares Curr 9
At)January and 31 16461 7 18161 R/ Hom-current — o3 23?3—
_December 2019 e s 3304 2508
———— ",'_.::... v'..:-.‘.lv; = .»w“*:“ — —_— — companyf 2019 20i8
Total 73,392 73 72,687 73 o L .
e ————— o L B £000 £000
- During the year lheoompanynssued279 000 (2018: 825/000) Ordinary 8- A1 January 2058 2193
.ghares to the publicurider its Equily for Punks VI (2018: V) crowdiunding Recewed during ihe year 251 -
-initiafive wilh an lssue price of £25,00{2018: £23.75) per share. This created o D e .
additional share premium of £6.985,000 (2018: £16643.000) in the year, Reteased to thé statement of (149). {138)
comprehensive Income . . .
-Allclasses of Shares rank equatly in terms of nghlsto receive dmdends. rights g e —
‘to participate in a distribution of the assets.of the company and voting al: At3|Decembet 2157 2055
general meetmgs excéptthatPreferred Cshareshavean iB%compounding - - © 7 B T
liguidation preference in the event of cerlain conditions. 2019 2018
Equity for Punks membars are entitfcd o certain additional rightsin relation to
AVEY T . : e treme . £000 £000_
‘product purchases and other membership benefils. ————— ——————————e
.. L . Current 149 138
At the year-end Enil (2018: £nil) of share capital and share premium remains .
unpaid.. ' Non-current _ 2008 8
‘Attho year-gnd here were 1317.968 (2018:1,526.370) shaie options granted 2157 2085
andnotexercised. T
Governrnentgranls have beénreceivad lor the purchase af certdin items.
. of land, property. plant and equipment. Prcmsmns aré made il requiredin
Groupand company. 2019 208 relation touniulfilted conditions or conlmgencnes atlached to these grants.
‘Sharepremium  Share premium
account account
T €000 ) £000
Attdapuary ~ T7 T T T 47538 T 128880
tssued thraugh Equity o Punks. 6985, 16,643,
Issued during the year 3682 2500
Shareoptions grantéd : 642 501
Share options exercised : ar
“Transactioncosts (705) (989)
AL31December o 158226 147535,
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27SHARE BAS EITJT?A'YTM’ENTTS?'
Thecompany opérates three share based payment schemes for the
benefit of senior Management..

EMi, Approved and Unapproved Company Share Option Plans (CSOPs)

Optibns granted under the EMI plan are exercisable fourto ten years
lollowmg the date of grant. One award under {his scheme has both service
'vestmg condifions, and anon rnarket pedormance vestlng contr tion
altachedto their exercise: annualnet profittaigel of 10%. Il not Metin any
~year thenan average canbe applied over the termtomeet larget..

Opllorsgranted uinder the approved CSOP are exercisable four lo nine;
Years (offowifig the date of | grant; Subject to service vesting conditions.,

CONT...

Optidng granted under the unappraved CSOP aregenerally exercisable
between two and fivé yéars, wilh lhree awards made undes this scheme-

being exercisable on grant: Thiee awards oaly Hiava seryice vesting:

:conditions, the remaining have aon marke! perforrnance vesting.
.conditions attached to their exercise, including achizvément of a'stro ong’
mdmdual performance rating, and sales exceeding, or noless than; 10%
ibelow, the target for the most recent financial yeas ending prior to the:

relevant vesting dala

The following table details the number, wenghted average exefcise price
‘(WAEP) and weighted average conlractual life (WACL) of share options for
{Ahe appfoved dnd unapproved schemes as at the balance sheet dale:

Lo B _ Approied GSOP- Unapproved CSOP
Numbefr ~ WAEP' T WACL  Number TWAEP | WAGL  Nomber  WAEP  WAGL
e e B S £ e
‘Ouistandingat tdanuary 2018~ 641300 027 4_98_. 57,820 191 627 - RSSO
Granted during the year - Co- - - - - 827,250 103 385
Exercrseddunngtheyear . - B : - - - - . -
T Oustenting B3I DEcember 2618 641300° | b2r T 498 :"s'?La“é'd' *"19"1 27 827250: 103 385
TGranted duringtheyear  ~ s . - - . 516000 00 7285
Exercised during the year - - - - = < (81.064) 108 052
‘Lapsedduring theyear (250000)  0a8 2000 (14550) 1i0 6.00 (377.788) 100 34
DUlandng a3 Decembar2018 991300 O 685 | 43270 2B 636 880398 102 263
'Exercisable at 31 December 2019 - - - - 51598 110
- - 85.600 150 -

Exercisable at 31 Decernber 2018' - -

Theialr value of the options granted dunng the  period was £5 {2018:£5). This was catculated with referenceto the last substantial share purchase

‘crealed addltuonai share ptemlum oI £382 000
28.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIGNS,
Group

The financial statementsinclude the financiai statements of the droiip ang
the ubsidiaries listedin note 12:

Company

The l6liowing table provides the total amount of transactions that have
beenentered intowith related parlies lor the relevant year::

Sales and purchases between refated partie$ aré made atnormal market- Salesto ‘Purchases  Amounls  Amoimts
prices. Outstandlng balancesare unsecured andcash setﬂement terms telated fiom  owedby  Gwedtd
vary:The company has providedgua rantees for a numbérof related party panties relat.é’d related retated
payables. The company has not made any provision for doubtiul debts parties partles partieg
retaling 16 amaunts owed by related parties: £000 £000 £000
" Subsidiaries: e o T
BrewDog Retail (td
2019 9578 - 1430 -
2018 8626 - 5173 -
BréwDog USA Inc
2019 22 - 21652 s
2018 313 - 2992¢ -
40
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Salesto  Purchases  Amounls  Amounts Salesto Pwchases  Amounls  Amounts
retated trom  ovedby owedlo related fiom  owedby  owedto
parlies related related related parties related related retated

parties parties parties parties paries parties
£000 £000 €000 £000 £000 £000 €000 £000
Subsidiaries: Subsidianies:
BrewDog GMBH BrewDog France
019 429 3663 2019 52 - 1983 -
2 i ' ) 2018 - - - -
2018 m - 633 - Orink TV
Lone Wolt Spirits Ltd 2019 - 909 1517 -
2019 - 347 - - 2018 - - - -
2018 _ 1228 1A15 R 8rewDog Group HK Ltd
BrewDog Belgium SPRL 2019 i ) 628 )
Wi
rewDog Belgium 2018 - - - R
2018 e N 734 - Olher directors’interests
2018 133 - 701 - 2019 166 221 92 49
BD Casanova SL 2018 185 661 a7 5
2019 64 - 607 - Ouring 2018 a numbrer of assets held by one of the directors have been
2018 45 R 273 . divested, resulling inlower levels of purchases from related parties.
Draft House Holding Ltd Director’s Ioan Amounisowed by Amounts owed lo
2019 137 - 4348 . relatedparlies£000 related parties £000
2018 625 - 4084 - 2019 s i
Hawkes Cider Ltd 2018 45 -
2019 2 80 1338 - Director's loan
2038 ° 278 367 - Amounts due to directors are non-interest bearing and are repayable on
BrewDog Korea demand.
2019 . - 897 . Other directors’ interests
2018 7 - 788 - Ouring both 2018 and 2018, purchases at normal market prices were made
by group companies from JBW (77) Limited, Musa 77 Limited, Jet Pack Pie
BrewDog Brasil Limited, B3FCMH LLC and Ten Tonne iMouse Inc, companies controlled by
2019 - - 214 - oneol the directors.
2018 1 R 25 - During 2019, purchases at normal market prices were made by group
companies fromPie & Mouse Limited, a company controlled by oneof the
Bryggmester Bob AS directors.
2019 . : 7o 29. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
2018 - i 85 ° Asaresuitof the COVID-19 pandemic, the company has conducted an
BrewDog Intemational assessment on the potential financial and operational risks lo the business. This
assessment isdescribed in more delallunder the Going Concern assessment.
2019 - - 666 - Despite ive potentialimpact across the business, the Directors do not currently
expect anyimpaimments due to the headroom available when animpairment test
2018 - - 285 -
wasundertakenat the year end.
BrewDog Sweden
Subsequent to the year end the company raised £3,309.000 onissue of a bond
2019 L ° S7 - on22 January 2020 paying 6% interest (5% incashand 1% inbeer). There have
2018 - - - . beennoother events since the balance sheet date.
BrewDog Australia The company also converted a £6,000000repayable ondemand loanintoa
0019 140 ) 2357 . structured term loan, repayabie inquarterly equalinsialments over 10 years.
Interest will be caleulated quarterly and charged at 21% per annum over the
2018 - - 212 - BaseRate.
Kabushi Kaisha BrewDog Japan Furthermore, the company enteredinto aninvoice financing arrangement which
2019 - - 142 - stales that the company can obiain a prepayment of up to 809 ol outstanding
2018 . . . . accounts recenvable in the UK up to afacility lmit of £20m.
BrewDoglreland I should be noted thal the agreement does not containany financial covenants
20i9 19 - 2342 - which the companyis lo adhere to. The company also secured a £25,000000
2018 . . . R CLBILS loan, repayable over 3years. There have beenno other events since the

balance sheetdate.
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Tothe members of BrewDog PLC

OPINION:

We have audited the financial statements of BrewDog PLC (the parent company’} and its subsidiaries (the, group) forithe year
ended 31December.2019 which comprise group and] parént company statements of financial position, the group statement of
comprehensnve income, the groupand parent company statements of cash flows, the grop and parent company statements
of changesinequity and the related notes 11629 lncludmg a summary of significant accounting pol:cnes THe firancial reporting
framework thathasbeen appliedi intheir, preparationis applicable law and International Fi nangial Reparting Standards (IFRSs)
asadopted by the European Unionand, as regartis the parent company financial statements, as apphed in acéordance withhe
provisions of the Comparies Act-2006.

in.our opinion:

«  thefifancial statements give a true and fair view of thee groufs and 6f the parent company's affairs as at 3i Decembeéi 2019 and
of thegroups profit forthe year thenended:.

- thegroup financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs ds adopted by the European Unior;

+  the' parent company financial statements have been pnoperly prepared in accordance with IRRSs as adopted by the Européan
Uniioriin Aécordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and:
the financial statements have been preparedinaccordance withthe requirements of the Companles Act 20086.

BASISFOROPINIDN

‘We conducted our audlt inaccordance with Intemational Standards on'Atiditing (UK).(5A8 (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsnblhttes under those standards are further desc ribed inthe Auditor’s responsubxtmes for the audlt of the fi nanctal statemenls
that are relevant to ouraudlt ofthe r nancial statemenls in lhe Uk .includnng lhe FRCs Ethical Standard,and we have fu!ﬁlled oun
other ethical responsnblhhes inaccordance with these requirements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obldinedis sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur-opinion.

ENPHASIS OF MATTER |
We draw altention tonotes 2 and 29 irichided in the financial statements, which describes the ezonaimic and social consequences’
the companyis facing as aresult of COViD-19which hasthe potentlal toimpact supply chains,; cormmodity prices and personnel:
available for work ander bemg 'able to accéss breweries, retailoutlets and offices! Our¢ opiniohis not Modifiedinrespect of this matter.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING T0 GOING CONCERN:

We have nothmg to report in respect ofthe followung mattersinrelation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

<« -the'directors’ use of the'gging concéri basis of accouritingin the: preparation of {he fihancial statemieritsis fiot appropriate; or

+  the directors have notdisclosedin the financial statements any identified materialuitcértainties that may cast significant doubt
about the group's or the parent company’s ability tocontinue to adopt ¢ thet going concern basis of accounting, for aperiodof at
ileast twelve months fiom the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

i UTHER INF I]HMATIBN
‘The other information comprises theinformationincludedin 'the annual report, other than the financial statepients afd oL
‘auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsuble for-the other information..

Quropiniononthe ﬁnant_;i_a! statements doe’s not cover the other informationand, except to the extent dtherwise explicitly statedin
this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

tn connectionwith our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is fo read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the'other informationis materially inconsistentwith the financial statemients of dur kitdwledge obtainedin the auditor
otherwise appears tobe matenalty risstated. lf we identify such matefialinconsistericies or apparent material misstatements..

we are required to defermine whether thereis a. material misstatement in the financial staterments or amateriat misstatement of
the'other information, If. based on the work we have performed, we conciude that theré is a material misstatement of the other
information, we are reéquifed to report that fact.

We have nothing to réport n this regard:

ANNUDAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS
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OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS. PRESCRIBEDBY THE COMPANIES ACT. 2006

inour oplnlon basedon the work undertakenin the course of the audit:
theinformation glven in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
‘prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
the strategic report and directors' report have, been prepéred in accordance with applicable legalrequiréments.

MATTERS ONWHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TOREPGRT BY EXCEPTION

Inthe lsght of the know!edge and understandsng of the. group ‘and the parent comgany and ats érvironment abtained in the ¢olirse

We have nothing to re_pg‘ir__tfi_i‘_i respect of the following malters in (élétibh,lo which the Companies Act 2006 requirés iisto report to
youif, in ourgpinion:
+ adequate accounting records have notbeen keptby the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
recéived from branches not visited by us; or
+ theparent company.ﬂnancnal Statementsdre notinagreement wi_thfth’e,a"c"c:‘c'iUﬁtIng)records andreturns; or
+  ceitaindisclosures of directorsiremuneration spécified By law are notmade; or
we have not received all the infofmatiorrand explanations we require foF: our auiciit.

RESPUNSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

As expla:ned more’ fully n the dnrectors responsibilities statemént set out énpage 48; the directors are responsible forthe.
preparation ofithe financial statements and for being's satisfied that theygivé a true and fair view,and for: such interridl control as
the dlrec tors determingis necessary to enable the preparation of financiai statements that are free from material mlsstatement
whether due fo fraud ok érror.

in preparing theifinancial statemenls, the diréctors aré résponsible for assessing {he grou psand the parent company ‘s ability
‘tocoftinuéasa going concern, disclosing; as appllcabte matters related to going concern and usmg the going concern basis
.of acounting unless the directors either intend toliquidate the group or the parent company or to céase operations, orhave no
‘realistic alternative but todo so.

AUDITOR'S RESPBNSlBtLITIES FOR THEAUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectwes are to obtain reastnable assurance about whether the fi nancnal statements asawholeare free from material
misstatement; whether.dise to fratid or efror, and toissue an auditor’s report that Includes our opinion:Reasonable assurance isa
high leve! of agsurance, but is nota guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance wi ith ISAs {UK) will always detect a material
misstalement whenil exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and afe considered material if indivigually.of. in the
aggregate, they.could réasonably be 8xpected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the'basis of these financial
stalements. .

A further déscription of our responsibilities for the audit of the finaricial statementsis located on the

Finiancial Reporting Council's website at hitps:/Awww fre.orguk/auditorsresponsibilities. This descriplion forms part of our
auditor's réport.

SEOF OURREPORT

“This report is made solely.to'the company’s members, asa body,in accordance, with Chapter-3 of Part16 of the Companies, Act
20086.Qur audit work has been’ tndertakén so that we might statetothe company ‘s membérsthose matters we are required to
state to theminanauditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent perm:tted bylaw, we do not accept orassume
responsibility to anyone other than the corfipany and-the company’s members as a body; for our audit work, for this report; or for
the opinions we have fermed.

EN\S‘\‘ & \{Mﬁ we

Jamig Dixon {Senior Statutory Auditor) ,
For andon bshalf of Ernst & Young LLM{(Statutory Auditon), Aberdeen.
28 August 2020

‘Noles:

1 The maintenance and integrity of theBrewDog PLCwebsiteis the responsibilty of the direclors; the wark carrted oul by the auditors does not involve:
-considerationof these matlers and; acoo:dmgty theauditors accept no responsibilty for any changes thatmayhave occurred to the financial statements;
since they were initially presented on thewebsite:

2 Legslationin the United Kingdém governing the preparation anddisseminationof findnicial statements may difter from legistation in other jurisdictions.
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Reglstered No. 80311560

The Directors present théir reportand financial statements for the year ended 31December 2019;,
‘These financial statements have béen prepared under International Financial Reporting Standards as:

adoptedby the European Union.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS:

The profitafter taxation for the year amounled to
£1,050, 000 (2018:i0ss, of £1.493,000).No dividend has
been paid or proposed (2018:£nil),

REVIEW:OF THE BUSINESS

The principal activity of the group continues to be

that of brewing beer and operaling bars. The resulls

of the grolip show a pre-tax: profit of £1115,000 (2018:
pre-tax loss of £576,000) for the year and turnover of
£214,896,000 (2018 £171,619,000).

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Weé arein business to make other people as passionate
about'great créft beer'dswe are.We will continueto
investin our people, our beer, our infrastructure and our
breweries. We are fenewing our focus on sustainability:
.and transparency to ensure that we make great beer
@nd have a planet to drink iton:

DIRECTORS

The directors who served the company durifig the.year,
ang up'to the date of signing, were as follows:

CKGreggor

NA Simpson

AM Dickie

JBWatt

D McDowali:

A D Green {resignéd 31 Decernber 2019)-
JILO'Hara

FBJack

JKMarshall (resigned 5 Apri! 2019)

A Shaw (appointed 15 February- 2019, resighed 24 July

2019)
.GOING CONCERN:

The directors continue to Elosely monitor the.
Coronavirus outbreak, with particildar regard+o the
wellbeing of their people and their ability to make,,
distribute'and sell great beers.

Widespread protective measures have been putin
, place throughout the Group globally to respond lo lhe

adjustéd operating proceduresito ensure social’
distancing was maintained. Staff whoare not currently-
réquiréd giventhe reduced operations have been.
tunioughed. For 6ur office staff many were furloughed or

are worklng fromhome.

‘These actions have significantly impactédthe cash
llows generated; however, the impact has beén

mitigated by the expansion of online sales and:
increased distribution through major retailers due to
changes in consumers demands and the utilisation of
Government schemes such asthe Coronavurug Job
Retention Séheme and:the deferral'of HMRC paymenis.
Such preparation and planning.has allowedithe
Directors to maximise cash resources available to the

Group and, as fér as possible, mitigate theimpact of the

virus'on the business.

Aslockdown restrictions ease and.we start to be
allowed to réopen barsacross our network-we have
putin place a number.of protective measures loensure
we are.complying with various governments gmdellnes
on social distancifig, track and trace; face coverings
and also further enhanced oiirygiené practices. Our
Brewingfacilities continue to operate with our adjusted
procedures and operation of shift patternsallows us to
limit the number of staff ansite,

The directors do.not yet knowwhat further measurés
may need o be pit iplace to conilain this virus, but are
¢ontinuing to review and make plansito minimise the
likelihood of transmission within BrewDog workplaces
and retail outlets.

Management have performed stress testing of
cashflow forecasts to take account of the poténtial
impactsof, Covnd-19 llncludmg adjustrnents to capacity
seyere.yet pla_usnb!e ‘qupsgde, soen_ano,mcludung

the potential for a second pandemic wave that would
impactihe group for alenger period includinginto 2021,
that the group has access:to sufficient liquidity through
the going concern period. As stich, the directors

havé areasonable expectation that the Company
and the Group have adéequate resources to continue

inoperational existence for the foreseeable future.
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baS|s,|_r,l preparlng the annual repori and acgou_nt,s

EUENTS SINCE THE BALANCE SHEET DATE:

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the company

has conducted an assessment on the poténtial findncial
and operational risks to the business. This assessment
is described in more detait under the Going Concern
.assessiment. Despité the poten‘t:al |mpact across the
biisiness, the Directors do ot curréntly expect any
impairménts due to the headroomavailable when an

impairmentitest was undértakenat the year end:

Subsequent to the year end the company raised
£3,309.080 through the issue of.a bond'on 22 January
2020 paying 6% interest (5% in cash and 1% in béer).

The company also coiverted a £5,000,000 repayable
ondemand loaninto asstructured.termioan, repayable’
in quarterly equal instalments over 10 years. Interestwill
becalculated quarterly and.charged at 21% per annum
over the Base Rate,

Furthermore, the company enteredinto aninvoice:
finangingarrangement which statesthat the company
can obtain a prepayment of up to 90% of outstanding
accounts receivablein the UK, up to a facility fimitof
£20m. It should be noted that the agreement.does not'

conlain any financial covenants which the company is to:

adhereto.

The company also seclired a £25,000,000 €BILS loan;
repayableover 3years.

There have been no other events since the balance

sheet date.

PRINCIPAL RISKSAND' UNCERTMNTIES

We consider the key risks and tncertainties afecting
thé group to be the availability and costof mgredients
for-our beers'and the growing prominence of the craft
beer.market bringing withit more competition.in.order
to mmgate these nsks and uncertamtles, we eontinue

to sourceiquality.hops arid'malt io.brew our infnovative
beéers and continue to look foF oppoitunities to bring our
beers to the wider public.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES ANDPOLICIES:

The groups actlvmes exposeit to anumber of financial
risks ,qnp.ludmg liquidity and credit risk.

Ligiidity risk:

In ordér-to maintain liquidity. to ensure that sufficient

funds are available for ongoing operations anci future
developments, the group uses a mixture of lohg, medium

and shorttermdebtfinarice. Forecasts are produced to
assist managementin identifyingliquidity requirements

and maintaining adequate reserves:
Creditrisk

Thegroup's financial assets are cashand cash
eguivalents and trade and-other féceivables.

The group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
recelvables for beer sales. The amounts presented

inthe balance sheet arenet.ofan allowance for the

expected credit foss. An allowance for impairment is:

:made where there is an idenitified loss event whichis:

évidence of a reductioninthe recoverability of cash:

flows.

Beer sales afe concenltrated towards a number of key
customers.Credit riskismanaged through maintaining
good customer relationships and the monitoring of
credit levels and settlement periods:.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counter party is a bank with an investmentgrade credit

rating assigned by intefniational credit rating agencies:

Brexitrisk

The directors recognise that the 6rngoing Brexit:
negotiations represent uncertainty for certain trading;
relationships, due to thé intérnationalinature of the
business. To mitigate potential disruption, we have
considered the ifpact on the business of potential tarift
changes (importand export), the physicatmovement.
of goods (importand export), currency fluctuations,

the movement of people and their right to work and:any

intellectual property implications..

The a'c‘:qursﬂioh duringthe year of ourbr‘eWery in Beriun

.....

the: E'U,
Coronavirus

We ére closely monitoring the Coronavirus outbréak,

‘with parti¢ularly fégard to the well-being of our people
-andour ability to make, distribiuté arid'sell great beers.
fwidespread protective measures are put i place

globally, this will sighificantly impact our results and.

therefore the cash flows generated by our barsand

brewing facilities.

We do not yel know what measures may need to be.
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putinplace to contaifi this virus, but are’ making plans
tominimise thelikelihood of transmiission within our
workplaces andare continuing to scenario plan. This wil
allow us;to maximise our cash resources and allow us'to,
asfar as possible; mitigate the impact of.the vifus onour:
business. "'

DISﬁBLED PERSUNS

The group’s pollcy is torecruit disabled workers for
those vacancies that they are able to filt: Al necessary.
assistancewith initial training courses ls‘\glven Once
employed, a career plan i§ déveloped soasto ensure
suitable opportunities for each disabled p&rson:
Arrangeémeints are made, wherever possible, for
retrannlng employees who become dlsabled 1o enable'

-

aptl_tudes and abllmes

'EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The group's policy is to consultand discuss with
éfriployees at meetings any matters likely to affect
their interests. Information on matters of concernlo
employees is given through information bulietins and
communications which seek to achieve acommon
awareness on the part of all employees of the
financialand economic facters affecting ihé group's
performance.

RESEARCH AND DEVELIJPM ENT-

During the year lhe group contlnued toundertake
research and development on new brewing methods
afid téchniques..

DIRECTORS' LABILITY

The company has granted anindemnity to one ormore
ofits directors against fiability inréspect of proceedings
brought by third parties; subjectto the conditions set
outin thé Companies Act: 2006 :Such qualifying third
party mdemnlty prowsuon remainsin force asatthe date
of approwng the dxreclors report:

‘DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATIUN T0 THE AUDITURS

So far ds the directors are aware;: there is no refevant
auditinformation of which the group's auditors are
unaware. Additionally; the directors have 1aken all.
the necessary §teps that they ought to have taken:
as directors inorder to make themsélves-aware of all
rélévant auditinformation and to establish that the
group'sauditors are aware of thatinformation.

SECTION1720F THE I.IK COMPANIESACT 2006

STATEMENT.AND OUR COMMITMENT T0 TRANSPARENT

ANDCONSTRUCTIVE DIALOGUEWITHALL OF OUR

'STAKEHOLDERS

The UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code)
requires the board to understand.the views of the.
.company'sother key.stakéholders and report.hiow
their interests and the mattefs setout in Section172 of
the UK Corripanies Act2006 have beenconsiderediri
‘board discussions and decision making.

During the year, the directors believe that they have
dctedin a way, and have made decisions that would,
mastlikely promoté the suctess of the groupfor the
benefit of its members as a whole, with particular regard
for thie following key stakeholders:

Our Pecple

BrewDogis built ona dommitment to'its workforce; who
are essential to our success and.growth. The BrewDog
Crewprint wasintroduced during 2018 to outline the
range of benefits offeréd to our teams; focussing on

key ralters for them including being paid a Real Living’
Wage,charitable giving, and learning-and development
and whichare detax!ed in the'Our People’ section.
Monthly ‘alfhands me,et,ln_gs hostedbya director are
held with employées tHat can either be attended i

‘personor watched on demand. These sessions cover

tradmg, strategic priorities and new mltlatlves with time

- for O&A Bi-monthly open doorséssions are held with.

‘theé Chief Operating Officer forall employees, where any
matters canbe discussed.

.Our Equity for Punks and other investors

We actively engage withour EFPs and other investors
to supportan understanding of our business, progress
against strategic priorities and to address any concerns.
Our EFP team has the primary responsibility for
managing and:déveloping our relationship with EFPs,

In addition to help build oui-EFP community the forum'
facilitatés communicationbetweenourinvestors

and the business; including directors. The AGMis an
opportunity for shareholders to hear from the founders
onthe Group's performance and strategic direction and
toask questions= -in addition to {asting our fantastic
‘fange of beers and spirits with other like-mindéd peoplé.
‘The AGM is available to webcast to those EFPs who.

©
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cannot attend in person. BrewDog's shareholder base
is managed by the EFP team with support from the
Company's registrars, Computershare.

Our Communities

Our belief is that business should be a force for good.
Given the current climate crisis, we have l[aunched six
major initiatives to ensure that in addition to making
great beer, we ensure that we have a planet to drink it on.
These include giving waste cans a secondife, reducing
waste by turning imperfect beer into great Vodka, and
investing up to £1m a year to support research initialives
that help our industry have a positive impact on the
world. The ‘BrewDog Tomorrow' section provides
further detail on these initiatives. We also seek to benefit
the communities in which we work, whether it is those
surrounding our four Breweries or our 10C bars. This
includes community events, such as Christmas parties,
charitable giving of both time and resources, and
working closely withlocal businesses.

Our suppliers

To allow us to make great beer, our suppliers are
fundamental to ihe quality of our products. To ensure we
obtain quality raw materials, we partner closely wilh key
suppliers. This includes providing support for research
and development; providing updates on our business,
strategic priorities and new product development.

By ordc:/rJf the Board of-Directors
G_M WD

JB Watt
Director
28 August 2020
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OF DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBI

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance With applicable United Kingdom company law.and those Inteéraational Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.

UnderUK Company Law the directors must not approve thie financial statements uriless they are.
satisfied that they present fairly the finahcial pesition, financial performance and cash flows of the group
and company forthat period. In preparing those financial statements the directors are required to:

. adopt the going concern basis; unlessitis toenable userstounderstand iheimpactof
inappropriate to do soi- particular trarisactions, other events and conditions:
onthe group and the company’s financial position

present fairly the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the gréup; andfinancialperformance:
state that the company andgroup hascomplied with
IFRSs; subject toany material departures disclosed
.andexplainedirithe financial statements; and

.select suitable accouriting policies inaccordance

‘with1AS 8: Accounting Policies; Chérigesin

Accounting Estimates and Errors and then apply:

them consistentiy; . 'make judgements and estimatés that are reasonable:

. present information, including accotnting policies, in andprudert.
amannerthat provides relevant; refiable, comparable
and understandable information;

. provide additional disclosures when compliance.
with the specific requirementsinIFRSS is insufficient

Thedlrectors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting récords that are sufficient to showand explain the group's

and company's transactions and disclose with feasonable accuracy at: any time the financial positionof the group ang
company.and enable themto ensure that the finaricial statements comply with.the UK -Cormpaiiies Act 2006; Theyare
also responsible for safeguardmg the assetsof the groupand company and hence for taking reasofiable steps for the
preventionand detection of fraudand other irregjularities.
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

DIRECTORS

JAMES WATT

Captain & Co-founder

James was a fully qualified deep sea Captain, having earfier completed an honours
degree in Law & Econamics. He traded inbeing a sally seadog tobecome a
BrewDogin 2007, pursuing his passion (or great craft beer by setting up the

company with Martin Dickie. James was awarded Greal Brilish Enlreprengur of the

Year in 2014, and was Eurape’s first Master Cicerone.

NEILSIMPSON

CFO

Nell Simpson joined BrewDog in August 2012 bringlrg with him over 20 years of
experience, (10 of which were al partner level), advising and acting for a wide variety
of businesses through the Ritson Smith accountancy practice. Neilis a qualified
chartered accountant with the Institute of Chartered Accountanisin Scotland.

BLYTHE JACK

Blythe is Managing Director at TSG Consumer. She joined TSG with extensive
privale equity and branded consumer experience, having spent over 10 years
at Rosewoad Capital and having served as CEO ol a high-growth consumer
producls cormpany. She has also served as aNational Judge (or Ernst & Young's
acclaimed Entrepreneur of the Year® program. Blythe received a BA, with honors,
in Communication Studies from Vanderbiit University.

KEITH GREGGOR

Keith Greggor lounded The Griffin Group in 2007 lo pursue and creale
apportunities within the drinks industry. Prior to forming The Gritfin Group, He
served a5 COO and CMO of Skyy Spirits, which he helped grow from a small single
brand company In 1998 to a significant multi-brand company in2006. Kelth has a
long-standing history of leading embryonic brands and companies through thelr
ipping points to prolonged success.

SECRETARY  AUDITORS

MARTIN DICKIE

BeerPirate & Co-founder

Martin Dickie has a lirst class honours degree in Brewing 8 Dislilling Irom Herriot
Watt University. He is arenegade artist an amission to change people’s perceptions
about beer and chaflenge their taste-buds.

Along with James, Martin hosts the hit internalional TV show BrewDogs.

DAVID MCDOWALL

Group COO

Davidjoined BrewDog from G1 Group PLC, where he held the position of Group
Operations Director for six years He has experience managing over 5Q sitesin
Scotland andheading up a team of cver 2000 employees, andis now responsible
for gverseeing the strategic growth and management of the BrewDog bar division,

JAMIE O°HARA

Jamie's experience includes business unit strategy. facifity rationalization and new
business devetopment for consumer and household products companles. Jamle
is alormer practlicing corporate and securities attorney and a former consullant at
Baln & Company. He holds a BA in Economics and Philosophy and a JO, both rom
GeorgetownUniversily,

BANKERS REGISTERED

A M Dickie Ernst & Young LLP, HSBC, 85-99 Union Street, )
Blenheim House Aberdeen, u FFI CE
Fountainhall Road, AB116BD Balmacassie Commercial
Aberdeen, A815 4DT Park, Ellon AB418BX
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